
           
  TOWN OF GREENBURGH

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA
WEDNESDAY, March 6, 2024 – 7:00 P.M.

Meetings of the Planning Board will be adjourned at 10:00 p.m.

                  

             
This meeting will take place in the Town Hall Auditorium, located at 177 Hillside Avenue,
Greenburgh, NY, and will also take place via Zoom. If you would like to watch the meeting,

you may do so via the Town's website
athttps://ny-greenburgh.civicplus.com/485/Watch-Live-Board-Meetings. This meeting will

be broadcast live on Cable Television and a recording likely will be available on cable
television thereafter. If you would like to participate in one or more of the public hearings

via Zoom, you must pre-register through the Department of Community Development and
Conservation by emailingpublichearing@greenburghny.com or calling 914-989-1530,

specifying the application(s) that you would like to speak on. Instructions to participate will
then be emailed to you or you will receive a return phone call.

AGENDA
 

1. ROLL CALL
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 

1.   Minutes of February 21, 2024
 

3. CORRESPONDENCE
 

4. OLD BUSINESS
 

1.   Case No. PB 22-07 Chick-fil-A, 20 Tarrytown Road (P.O. White Plains, N.Y.) – Site
Plan, Special Use Permit (Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment), Tree Removal
Permit, and Recommendation to the Zoning Board of Appeals

A continuation of a work session (September 20, 2023, October 4, 2023, November 1,
2023, January 3, 2024, and February 21, 2024) to discuss a Site Plan, Special Use
Permit (Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment), and Tree Removal Permit application
involving the proposed construction of a new Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment,
with related improvements. The Applicant proposes to construct a new, 5,028 sq. ft.,
94-seat (74 interior, 20 exterior) Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment, with a
double-lane drive-thru. The property has existing curb cuts on Old Kensico Road and
on County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to relocate the curb cut on Old

https://ny-greenburgh.civicplus.com/485/Watch-Live-Board-Meetings
mailto:publichearing@greenburghny.com


Kensico Road and add a curb cut to County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to
include 112 parking spaces (79 striped, 33 credited for drive-thru), where 143 spaces
are required. A total of thirty (30) off-street parking spaces, dedicated for employee
parking only, are proposed to be situated on an adjacent lot located within the City of
White Plains zoned Business (B-3), requiring approval from the City. The following
area variances are required: (1) side yard setback to detached canopy, from 40 feet
(required) to 6.8 feet (proposed); (2) Tarrytown Road side yard setback to principle
building, from 40 feet (required) to 36.8 feet (proposed); (3) County Center Road side
yard setback to principle building, from 40 feet (required) to 5.4 feet (proposed); (4)
total of two side yards, from 80 feet (required) to 42.2 feet (proposed); (5) distance
from off-street parking to principal building, from 10 feet (required) to 7.7 feet/0 feet
for the parking lot/drive-thru (proposed); (6) off-street parking spaces, from 143
(required) to 112 (proposed); (7) distance from off-street parking to front lot line, from
20 feet (required) to 3.4 feet (proposed); (8) distance from off-street parking to side lot
line (County Center Road), from 10 feet (required) to 2.4 feet (proposed); (9) distance
from off-street parking to side lot line (Tarrytown Road), from 10 feet (required) to 2.2
feet (proposed); (10) height of exterior lighting, from 14 feet (permitted) to 27 feet
(proposed); (11) Old Kensico Road front yard setback to accessory storage building
(storage shed, from 30 feet (required) to 21.8 feet (proposed); and (12) County Center
Road side yard setback to accessory storage building (storage shed), from 40 feet
(required) to 19.5 feet (proposed). The Planning Board will be considering a
recommendation to the Zoning Board of Appeals on the required area variances. The
Applicant proposes to remove 16 landscaped trees in the existing parking area,
requiring a Tree Removal Permit from the Planning Board, and has prepared a
landscaping plan providing for 19 trees and 270 shrubs, as replacement. The Applicant
seeks waivers from the Planning Board for the required 10-foot landscaped buffers on
all sides of the property. The Applicant has prepared a traffic impact study, along with
supplemental traffic analyses, which have been reviewed by the Town’s traffic
consultant for this project. The subject properties consist of approximately 75,065 sq.
ft. (1.7 acres) and are situated on the northerly side of Tarrytown Road, at the
intersection of Tarrytown Road and Old Kensico Road. The properties within the Town
of Greenburgh are located in the DS Designed Shopping District, are designated on the
tax map of the Town of Greenburgh as Parcel ID: 7.570-328-1 & 2, and in total consist
of approximately 55,912 sq. ft. The properties within the City of White Plains are
located within the B-3 Business District, are designated as Parcel ID: 125.57-3-1 & 2,
and in total consist of approximately 19,153 sq. ft.
 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS
 

1.   Case No. PB 23-24 Lee & Cheng, 260 South Healy Avenue (P.O. Scarsdale, N.Y.)
–Wetland/Watercourse Permit and Tree Removal Permit
A work session to discuss a Wetland/Watercourse Permit and Tree Removal Permit
application involving the proposed construction of a new single-family home on an
existing lot. The Applicant proposes to remove an existing, burnt-out single-family
home and construct a new home with related improvements. The Applicant proposes to
disturb approximately 3,619 sq. ft. of wetland/watercourse buffer area on the property,



associated with an on-site watercourse. The Applicant proposes the removal of one (1)
regulated tree, requiring a Tree Removal Permit, and has prepared a landscaping plan
providing for the planting of four (4) trees, as replacement. The property consists of
approximately 23,339 sq. ft. (0.54 acres) and is situated on the easterly side of South
Healy Avenue, approximately 500 feet south of the intersection of South Healy Avenue
and Elizabeth Street. The property is located in the R-20 One-Family Residence
District and is designated on the tax map of the Town of Greenburgh as Parcel ID:
8.290-224-42.
 

 

6. OLD BUSINESS - continued
 

1.   Case No. TB 23-09 Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Local Law – Zoning Text
Amendment (Town Board Referral)
A continued work session (January 3, 2024, January 17, 2024, February 7, 2024, and
February 21, 2024) to consider a Zoning Text Amendment (Town Board referral) to
regulate and permit Accessory Dwelling Units, pursuant to Section 285-36 of the Town
Zoning Ordinance, with related definitions. The Town Board of the Town of
Greenburgh finds it desirable to explore allowing accessory dwelling units in
one-family residential districts to provide an opportunity for development of rental
housing units designed to meet housing needs that include, but are not limited to, single
persons, couples, other small households, relatives of existing families within the
Town, the young, the elderly, and persons seeking more affordable options. The
proposed Zoning Text Amendment would allow for accessory dwellings units in the
R-5, R-7.5, R-10, R-15, R-20, R-30, and R-40 Zoning Districts, by Special Use Permit
from the Planning Board.
 
 

 

7. ESTABLISH DATE FOR NEXT MEETING
 

1. The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Greenburgh Planning Board will be held on
and is scheduled to begin at 7:00 pm.

 



   
Planning Board Meeting   2. 1.           
Meeting Date: 03/06/2024  

Information
Text/Header:
Minutes of February 21, 2024

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Minutes of 2/21/24



 

 

 

TOWN OF GREENBURGH 

       PLANNING BOARD MINUTES 

GREENBURGH – NEW YORK 

Wednesday – February 21, 2024 

      

 

The Work Session of the Planning Board of the Town of Greenburgh began at 7:05 pm on Wednesday, 

February 21, 2024, and was held both in-person at Town Hall, located at 177 Hillside Avenue, Greenburgh, 

New York, and online via Zoom-enabled videoconference. It was also simulcast over cable television and the 

Town of Greenburgh website.  

 

1. ROLL CALL & ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Present:  Chairperson Hugh Schwartz, Walter Simon, Kirit Desai, and Aisha Sparks (Alternate Voting 

Member) 

  

Absent:   Thomas Hay, Michael Golden, Johan Snaggs, Leslie Davis 

  

Staff:    Garrett Duquesne, AICP, Commissioner, CD&C 

Joe Danko, Esq., Town Attorney 

         Amanda Magana, Esq., First Deputy Town Attorney 

Matthew Britton, Planner, CD&C 

 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairperson Schwartz asked if there were any comments on the draft minutes of the February 7, 2024 

Planning Board work session. Mr. Simon stated that, in the discussion for Case No. TB 23-08/PB 23-18, 

it should be added that the Applicant is required to address traffic concerns caused by their site build-out. 

There were no other comments. Mr. Britton stated that this revision would be made. On a motion made 

by Mr. Simon and seconded by Ms. Sparks, the Planning Board unanimously voted to approve the 

minutes of the February 7, 2024 work session, as amended. 

 

3. CORRESPONDENCE 

a. Letters of Support for RAISE Grants 

Chairperson Schwartz stated that Commissioner Duquesne has provided a draft letter of support for 

the Town to apply for a RAISE Grant to construct a complete-street bicycle pathway along Route 

119 from South Broadway in Tarrytown, to the South County Trailway for the Board’s consideration. 

There were no comments. 

 

On a motion made by Mr. Desai and seconded by Mr. Simon, the Planning Board unanimously voted 

to issue the letter of support for the RAISE Grant.  

 

b. Case No. PB 22-20 Elmwood Preserve, 850 Dobbs Ferry Road (P.O. White Plains, N.Y.) – 1st 

Preliminary Subdivision Extension Request 

Mr. Britton reported that the Applicant has requested a 180-day extension of the Preliminary 

Subdivision approval, as the Applicant is working to comply with the conditions of said approval. 

There were no comments. 

 

On a motion made by Mr. Simon and seconded by Mr. Desai, the Planning Board unanimously voted 

to grant a nunc-pro-tunc retroactive 180-day extension of the Preliminary Subdivision approval, valid 

through August 11, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

4. OLD BUSINESS – WORK SESSION 

 



Planning Board Minutes    -2- 

February 21, 2024 

a. Case No. TB 23-08/PB 23-18 Regeneron, 555 Saw Mill River Road (P.O. Tarrytown, N.Y.) – 

Amended Site Plan (Town Board referral), Tree Removal Permit (Town Board), Planning Board 

Steep Slope Permit, and Planning Board Wetland/Watercourse Permit 

A continued work session (November 15, 2023 and February 7, 2024) to discuss an Amended Site 

Plan (Town Board approval – referral to Planning Board), Tree Removal Permit application (Town 

Board approval), Planning Board Steep Slope Permit, and Planning Board Wetland/Watercourse 

Permit application involving the proposed construction of an approximately 136,000 sq. ft. R&D 

Building (aka Logistics Building), with related improvements. The site is partially disturbed with 

existing off-street parking and driveway connections to Old Saw Mill River Road and an internal 

adjoining Regeneron site. The Applicant proposes approximately 4,196 sq. ft. of disturbance to 15-

25% slopes (STEEP SLOPES), approximately 20,717 sq. ft. of disturbance to 25-35% slopes (VERY 

STEEP SLOPES), and approximately 10,325 sq. ft. of disturbance to 35%+ slopes (EXCESSIVELY 

STEEP SLOPES). The proposed project involves a total of approximately 8.04 acres (350,222 sq. 

ft.) of disturbance, 35,823 sq. ft. of which are proposed in a regulated wetland buffer. The Applicant 

proposes the removal of 46 regulated trees, requiring a Tree Removal Permit from the Town Board, 

and has submitted a landscaping plan providing for the planting of 163 trees, as replacement. The 

subject property consists of approximately 39.8 acres (1,735,153 sq. ft.), is located in the PED 

Planned Economic Development District, and is designated on the tax map of the Town of 

Greenburgh as Parcel ID: 7.71-6-2.2. 

 

Chairperson Schwartz stated that a draft recommendation has been prepared for the Board’s 

consideration. Mr. Simon stated that he is in favor of a positive recommendation, provided that his 

traffic concerns are addressed in the recommendation. Mr. Britton read the draft recommendation, 

which includes truck turning concerns for two (2) movements. Mr. Simon stated that he was also 

concerned with vehicles traveling south on Route 9A at a high rate of speed. Mr. Britton suggested 

including language recommending the installation of traffic calming measures for southbound traffic. 

The Board agreed. 

 

On a motion made by Mr. Simon and seconded by Mr. Desai, the Planning Board unanimously 

approved voted to issue a positive recommendation on the Site Plan referral, as amended. 

 

b. Case No. PB 22-07 Chick-fil-A, 20 Tarrytown Road (P.O. White Plains, N.Y.) – Site Plan, Special 

Use Permit (Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment), Tree Removal Permit, and Recommendation 

to the Zoning Board of Appeals 

A continuation of a work session (September 20, 2023, October 4, 2023, November 1, 2023, and 

January 3, 2024) to discuss a Site Plan, Special Use Permit (Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment), 

and Tree Removal Permit application involving the proposed construction of a new Quick 

Service/Fast Food Establishment, with related improvements. The Applicant proposes to construct a 

new, 5,028 sq. ft., 94-seat (74 interior, 20 exterior) Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment, with a 

double-lane drive-thru. The property has existing curb cuts on Old Kensico Road and on County 

Center Road. The Applicant proposes to relocate the curb cut on Old Kensico Road and add a curb 

cut to County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to include 112 parking spaces (79 striped, 33 

credited for drive-thru), where 143 spaces are required. A total of thirty (30) off-street parking spaces, 

dedicated for employee parking only, are proposed to be situated on an adjacent lot located within 

the City of White Plains zoned Business (B-3), requiring approval from the City. The following area 

variances are required: (1) side yard setback to detached canopy, from 40 feet (required) to 6.8 feet 

(proposed); (2) Tarrytown Road side yard setback to principle building, from 40 feet (required) to 

36.8 feet (proposed); (3) County Center Road side yard setback to principle building, from 40 feet 

(required) to 5.4 feet (proposed); (4) total of two side yards, from 80 feet (required) to 42.2 feet 

(proposed); (5) distance from off-street parking to principal building, from 10 feet (required) to 7.7 

feet/0 feet for the parking lot/drive-thru (proposed); (6) off-street parking spaces, from 143 (required) 

to 112 (proposed); (7) distance from off-street parking to front lot line, from 20 feet (required) to 3.4 

feet (proposed); (8) distance from off-street parking to side lot line (County Center Road), from 10 

feet (required) to 2.4 feet (proposed); (9) distance from off-street parking to side lot line (Tarrytown 

Road), from 10 feet (required) to 2.2 feet (proposed); (10) height of exterior lighting, from 14 feet 



Planning Board Minutes    -3- 

February 21, 2024 

(permitted) to 27 feet (proposed); (11) Old Kensico Road front yard setback to accessory storage 

building (storage shed, from 30 feet (required) to 21.8 feet (proposed); and (12) County Center Road 

side yard setback to accessory storage building (storage shed), from 40 feet (required) to 19.5 feet 

(proposed). The Planning Board will be considering a recommendation to the Zoning Board of 

Appeals on the required area variances. The Applicant proposes to remove 16 landscaped trees in the 

existing parking area, requiring a Tree Removal Permit from the Planning Board, and has prepared a 

landscaping plan providing for 19 trees and 270 shrubs, as replacement. The Applicant also seeks 

waivers from the Planning Board for the required 10-foot landscaped buffers on all sides of the 

property. The Applicant has prepared a traffic impact study, along with supplemental traffic analyses, 

which have been reviewed by the Town’s traffic consultant for this project. The subject properties 

consist of approximately 75,065 sq. ft. (1.7 acres) and are situated on the northerly side of Tarrytown 

Road, at the intersection of Tarrytown Road and Old Kensico Road. The properties within the Town 

of Greenburgh are located in the DS Designed Shopping District, are designated on the tax map of 

the Town of Greenburgh as Parcel ID: 7.570-328-1 & 2, and in total consist of approximately 55,912 

sq. ft. The properties within the City of White Plains are located within the B-3 Business District, are 

designated as Parcel ID: 125.57-3-1 & 2, and in total consist of approximately 19,153 sq. ft. 

 

Ms. Magana recused herself prior to any discussion on this project and stated that Mr. Danko would 

be filling in for her. Chairperson Schwartz stated that the Board would be considering a 

recommendation to the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) and a SEQRA determination, and invited 

the Applicant to present what it has prepared and submitted since the last meeting. Philip Grealy, 

P.E., of Colliers Engineering & Design, representing the Applicant, presented queuing data from four 

(4) additional Chick-fil-As, gathered at the Board’s request. Chairperson Schwartz asked how long 

it took for a car to move through the drive-thru queue. Mr. Grealy responded that such data was not 

collected. Timothy Freitag, P.E., of Bohler Engineering, representing the Applicant, noted that Chick-

fil-A can prepare six (6) meals at once, reducing the time of vehicles in the queue. Mr. Simon stated 

that his single issue is that he does not want cars to backup onto the adjacent streets. Mr. Grealy stated 

that a traffic management plan has been developed, with queuing for 47-54 cars under heavy load. 

Mr. Simon noted that cars leaving the site is critical. Mr. Grealy reported that, in looking at the data, 

very close to the number of vehicles exit as enter, noting that the prior submitted traffic report 

included that during the peak hour 163 vehicles entered and 162 vehicles exited. Chairperson 

Schwartz opined that the newly submitted data appears to be consistent with the prior data. 

 

John Canning, P.E., of Kimley-Horn, the Town’s Traffic Consultant for this project, stated that he 

reviewed the submission and agreed that the data was consistent with the prior submitted traffic study. 

He opined that the delay averages seem reasonable for what a costumer will wait for. He noted that 

there was some discussion of potential pick-up accommodations in the parking lot in the City of 

White Plains and asked how that would work. Mr. Grealy responded that the eastern parking lot could 

serve as an overflow queue if the western lot gets too full. Mr. Canning felt that the biggest issue will 

be the first month of opening, for which a traffic management plan has been developed, and added 

that the plan can be implemented beyond opening if traffic volumes demand it. He suggested that, if 

the project is approved, a condition be included to require the Applicant to come back to the Board 

if there is a traffic issue. Mr. Canning stated that, based on the data provided, the site should operate 

as intended, from a traffic perspective. 

 

Mr. Desai asked if the queuing time considered if a vehicle had a breakdown in the queuing lane. Mr. 

Grealy responded that, in his experience, staff could push the car out of the way, and noted that there 

will be two (2) drive-thru lanes, so the site could still operate. Mr. Desai asked if the analyses provided 

include the worst times and whether a breakdown would precipitate queuing into the street. Mr. 

Grealy responded that the maximum typical queue was in the high-20s, and the project site had 9-12 

queuing spaces in reserve, which could handle an issue. Mr. Canning noted that if a queue starts to 

get really long due to a breakdown, it disincentivizes new customers from joining the queue. Mr. 

Desai asked if food could be delivered to cars in the eastern lot. Mr. Grealy responded that the lot 

would be flexible and could be used for additional stacking or to direct customers to park there and 

order inside. Mr. Desai asked if there would be enough staff to direct traffic. Mr. Grealy responded 



Planning Board Minutes    -4- 

February 21, 2024 

that there would be, as outlined in the traffic management plan. Mr. Simon asked if part of the 

operation plan is to have an employee waive along traffic if the queue is too long or service has to be 

interrupted. Mr. Grealy responded that was the case. Chairperson Schwartz asked if the Applicant 

would be agreeable to that as a condition of any approval. Charles Gottlieb, Esq., of Whiteman 

Osterman & Hanna LLP, representing the Applicant, responded that it would be agreeable, if he could 

review the language as well. He noted that the Applicant has shut down stores that were having issues, 

in order to correct said issues.  

 

Chairperson Schwartz stated that the Board is the lead agency for SEQR review and opined that the 

Town needs to reconsider how it regulates drive-thrus, but, as drive-thrus are an inherent part of the 

business model for the Applicant, a Negative Declaration should be issued, indicating that the Town 

needs to address drive-thrus and their environmental impacts. Mr. Gottlieb noted that SEQRA should 

be project specific. Chairperson Schwartz stated that he would defer to counsel on the matter. He 

stated that, with respect to the variances, he felt a neutral recommendation was most appropriate, due 

to the number of variances. Mr. Desai agreed. Mr. Gottlieb noted that most of the variances are 

improvements over existing conditions, and others relate to the drive-thru extension requested by the 

Board. Chairperson Schwartz clarified that a neutral recommendation is not a negative 

recommendation and stated that the recommendation can include how certain variances are an 

improvement over existing conditions. He directed staff to prepare a draft SEQRA Negative 

Declaration and neutral recommendation to the ZBA for consideration at the next meeting.  

 

c. Case No. TB 23-09 Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Local Law – Zoning Text Amendment (Town 

Board Referral) 

A continued work session (January 3, 2024, January 17, 2024, and February 7, 2024) to consider a 

Zoning Text Amendment (Town Board referral) to regulate and permit Accessory Dwelling Units, 

pursuant to Section 285-36 of the Town Zoning Ordinance, with related definitions. The Town Board 

of the Town of Greenburgh finds it desirable to explore allowing accessory dwelling units in one-

family residential districts to provide an opportunity for development of rental housing units designed 

to meet housing needs that include, but are not limited to, single persons, couples, other small 

households, relatives of existing families within the Town, the young, the elderly, and persons 

seeking more affordable options. The proposed Zoning Text Amendment would allow for accessory 

dwellings units in the R-5, R-7.5, R-10, R-15, R-20, R-30, and R-40 Zoning Districts by Special Use 

Permit from the Planning Board. 

 

Chairperson Schwartz stated that staff prepared a draft recommendation and report, which was 

revised following comments from Commissioner Duquesne. He reported that the revisions addressed 

the question of whether an accessory dwelling unit (ADU) is in compliance with the Comprehensive 

Plan. He stated that the Comprehensive Plan is a living document and the draft ADU local law 

complies with almost all parts of Section 10, except for density. Chairperson Schwartz noted that 

there were two aspects of density, building and population, and the building density impact would 

likely be de minimus, with the population density impact mitigated by the Board’s recommendation 

of a cap on ADU Special Use Permits of 25 per year. Mr. Desai expressed concern with the 25 per 

year cap and a set distance separation, as it could deprive others of an ADU. Chairperson Schwartz 

stated that the Accessible Viable Living Committee (AVL) declined to recommend a distance 

separation for that exact reason. He added that the AVL calculated that the Town was short 739 

affordable housing units. He stated that the affordable unit set-aside requirement has not resulted in 

enough affordable housing, and while the ADU local law would not solve the issue, it would help, 

but the 25 per year cap is the most that the Board could handle in applications. Chairperson Schwartz 

indicated that the recommendation to remove the 10,000 sq. ft. lot size minimum was to help those 

on smaller lots with less income to keep their homes through the addition of an ADU.  

 

Mr. Desai asked if an easier route for existing, illegal ADUs to be legalized could be included. Ms. 

Magana stated that in some municipalities existing ADUs and conversions of existing buildings into 

ADU’s forego the Special Permit or Site Plan process and go straight to the Building Department for 

administrative review. Chairperson Schwartz stated that eventually he would like to move to an 



Planning Board Minutes    -5- 

February 21, 2024 

administrative process at some point and felt that the idea to legalize an existing ADU through the 

Building Inspector was a good idea. He suggested recommending the inclusion of a provision that 

the Planning Board has the option to waive the public hearing for an existing ADU. Mr. Britton 

suggested including a sunset provision to apply to legalize an existing ADU. Chairperson Schwartz 

agreed. The Board discussed including a six-month sunset provision. Mr. Desai felt that it should be 

an administrative process. Mr. Simon agreed with a time limit in which to legalize an ADU through 

an administrative process. Mr. Desai felt that a longer time frame, such as two (2) years, would be 

needed. Mr. Simon suggested that the recommendation be updated to include that, for a period of 

time, applicants with existing, illegal ADUs can apply and legalize their ADUs through an 

administrative process. The Board agreed.  

 

Mr. Desai opined that parking requirements are another hurdle for ADU construction. Chairperson 

Schartz noted that the parking requirement is consistent with the roomer and boarder Special Use 

Permit requirements. He reiterated that the AVL discussed the possibility of a distance separation for 

ADUs and recommended against it. Ms. Magana added that the AVL considered how to address 

neighborhood character and density issues and leaned towards including specific criteria. 

Chairperson Schwartz stated that the concern is whether sufficient specific criteria could be created. 

He noted that the Board could not take a specific position on it. Chairperson Schwartz tabled the 

discussion on this issue until next meeting. He directed staff to update the report and recommendation 

with what was discussed. 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS – WORK SESSION 

a. Case No. PB 24-05 Li, 7 Greenvale Circle (P.O. Whtie Plains, N.Y.) – Planning Board Steep Slope 

Permit, Wetland/Watercourse Permit, and Tree Removal Permit (Pre-submission Conference) 

A pre-submission conference to discuss a potential future Planning Board Steep Slope Permit, 

Wetland/Watercourse Permit, and Tree Removal Permit application involving the construction of a 

single-family home with related improvements on a vacant lot. The Manhattan Brook runs through 

the rear of the property and much of the lot is within the regulated buffer area, including the location 

of the proposed home. The site contains steep slopes and is heavily wooded; the extent of steep slope 

disturbance or tree removals has not yet been determined. The subject property consists of 

approximately 14,821 sq. ft. (0.34 acre) and is situated on the westerly side of Greenvale Circle, 

approximately 250 feet south of the intersection of Greenvale Circle and Tarrytown Road. The 

property is located in the DS Designed Shopping District and is designated on the tax map of the 

Town of Greenburgh as Parcel ID: 8.20-19-10. 

 

Chairperson Schwartz stated that this project was on for a pre-submission conference. Mr. Simon 

Xiaoming Li, the Applicant, presented the project. Planning Board Member Mr. Simon asked if 

variances would be required. Mr. Britton advised that the Building Inspector will review any formal 

submission, and that it appeared that setback variances or impervious coverage variances may be 

needed. Mr. Desai noted that a large number of trees are proposed for removal and would need to be 

replaced. He encouraged the Applicant to add more green space. Chairperson Schwartz suggested the 

Applicant explore a smaller driveway, explaining that there could be no increase in runoff from the 

development of the property. He recommended the Applicant discuss the project with a local engineer 

to calculate the various coverages and disturbances and speak with the Building Inspector about other 

potential issues. He thanked the Applicant for the presentation.  

 

6. ESTABLISH DATE FOR NEXT MEETING 

 The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Greenburgh Planning Board will be held on Wednesday, 

March 6, 2024, and is scheduled to begin at 7:00 pm. 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

The February 21, 2024 work session of the Town of Greenburgh Planning Board was adjourned at 9:46 

pm. 

 

 



Planning Board Minutes    -6- 

February 21, 2024 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
___________________________ 

Aaron Schmidt 

Deputy Commissioner, 

Department of Community Development and Conservation 



   
Planning Board Meeting   4. 1.           
Meeting Date: 03/06/2024  

Information
Text/Header:
Case No. PB 22-07 Chick-fil-A, 20 Tarrytown Road (P.O. White Plains, N.Y.) – Site Plan,
Special Use Permit (Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment), Tree Removal Permit, and
Recommendation to the Zoning Board of Appeals

A continuation of a work session (September 20, 2023, October 4, 2023, November 1, 2023,
January 3, 2024, and February 21, 2024) to discuss a Site Plan, Special Use Permit (Quick
Service/Fast Food Establishment), and Tree Removal Permit application involving the proposed
construction of a new Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment, with related improvements. The
Applicant proposes to construct a new, 5,028 sq. ft., 94-seat (74 interior, 20 exterior) Quick
Service/Fast Food Establishment, with a double-lane drive-thru. The property has existing curb
cuts on Old Kensico Road and on County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to relocate the
curb cut on Old Kensico Road and add a curb cut to County Center Road. The Applicant proposes
to include 112 parking spaces (79 striped, 33 credited for drive-thru), where 143 spaces are
required. A total of thirty (30) off-street parking spaces, dedicated for employee parking only, are
proposed to be situated on an adjacent lot located within the City of White Plains zoned Business
(B-3), requiring approval from the City. The following area variances are required: (1) side yard
setback to detached canopy, from 40 feet (required) to 6.8 feet (proposed); (2) Tarrytown Road
side yard setback to principle building, from 40 feet (required) to 36.8 feet (proposed); (3) County
Center Road side yard setback to principle building, from 40 feet (required) to 5.4 feet
(proposed); (4) total of two side yards, from 80 feet (required) to 42.2 feet (proposed); (5)
distance from off-street parking to principal building, from 10 feet (required) to 7.7 feet/0 feet for
the parking lot/drive-thru (proposed); (6) off-street parking spaces, from 143 (required) to 112
(proposed); (7) distance from off-street parking to front lot line, from 20 feet (required) to 3.4 feet
(proposed); (8) distance from off-street parking to side lot line (County Center Road), from 10
feet (required) to 2.4 feet (proposed); (9) distance from off-street parking to side lot line
(Tarrytown Road), from 10 feet (required) to 2.2 feet (proposed); (10) height of exterior lighting,
from 14 feet (permitted) to 27 feet (proposed); (11) Old Kensico Road front yard setback to
accessory storage building (storage shed, from 30 feet (required) to 21.8 feet (proposed); and (12)
County Center Road side yard setback to accessory storage building (storage shed), from 40 feet
(required) to 19.5 feet (proposed). The Planning Board will be considering a recommendation to
the Zoning Board of Appeals on the required area variances. The Applicant proposes to remove
16 landscaped trees in the existing parking area, requiring a Tree Removal Permit from the
Planning Board, and has prepared a landscaping plan providing for 19 trees and 270 shrubs, as
replacement. The Applicant seeks waivers from the Planning Board for the required 10-foot
landscaped buffers on all sides of the property. The Applicant has prepared a traffic impact study,
along with supplemental traffic analyses, which have been reviewed by the Town’s traffic
consultant for this project. The subject properties consist of approximately 75,065 sq. ft. (1.7
acres) and are situated on the northerly side of Tarrytown Road, at the intersection of Tarrytown
Road and Old Kensico Road. The properties within the Town of Greenburgh are located in the DS
Designed Shopping District, are designated on the tax map of the Town of Greenburgh as Parcel



Designed Shopping District, are designated on the tax map of the Town of Greenburgh as Parcel
ID: 7.570-328-1 & 2, and in total consist of approximately 55,912 sq. ft. The properties within the
City of White Plains are located within the B-3 Business District, are designated as Parcel ID:
125.57-3-1 & 2, and in total consist of approximately 19,153 sq. ft.
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
PB 22-07 Chick-fil-A Draft Recommendation to the ZBA
PB 22-07 Chick-fil-A Draft Neg Dec



TOWN of GREENBURGH
Department of Community

Development & Conservation

Paul Feiner
Supervisor

Garrett Duquesne, AICP
Commissioner

Aaron Schmidt
Deputy Commissioner

(1)

MEMORANDUM

TO: CHAIRPERSON BUNTING-SMITH AND MEMBERS OF THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

THRU: MATT BRITTON, Planner, Department of CD & C

FROM: TOWN OF GREENBURGH PLANNING BOARD

DATE: March 7, 2024

RE: Case No. PB 22-07 Chick-fil-A – 20 Tarrytown Road, P.O. White Plains, N.Y. – Planning Board Neutral
Recommendation to ZBA (Area Variances)

The above-referenced project involves a Planning Board Site Plan, Special Use Permit (Quick Service/Fast Food 
Establishment), and Tree Removal Permit application involving the proposed construction of a new Quick 
Service/Fast Food Establishment, with related improvements. The Applicant proposes to construct a new, 5,028 
sq. ft., 94-seat (74 interior, 20 exterior) Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment, with a double-lane drive-thru. The 
property has existing curb cuts on Old Kensico Road and on County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to 
relocate the curb cut on Old Kensico Road and add a curb cut to County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to 
include 112 parking spaces (79 striped, 33 credited for drive-thru), where 143 spaces are required. A total of thirty 
(30) off-street parking spaces, dedicated for employee parking only, are proposed to be situated on an adjacent lot 
located within the City of White Plains zoned Business (B-3), requiring approval from the city. The following area 
variances are required: (1) side yard setback to detached canopy, from 40 feet (required) to 6.8 feet 
(proposed); (2) Tarrytown Road side yard setback to principle building, from 40 feet (required) to 36.8 feet 
(proposed); (3) County Center Road side yard setback to principle building, from 40 feet (required) to 5.4 
feet (proposed); (4) total of two side yards, from 80 feet (required) to 42.2 feet (proposed); (5) distance from 
off-street parking to principal building, from 10 feet (required) to 7.7 feet/0 feet for the parking lot/drive-
thru (proposed); (6) off-street parking spaces, from 143 (required) to 112 (proposed); (7) distance from off-
street parking to front lot line, from 20 feet (required) to 3.4 feet (proposed); (8) distance from off-street 
parking to side lot line (County Center Road), from 10 feet (required) to 2.4 feet (proposed); (9) distance 
from off-street parking to side lot line (Tarrytown Road), from 10 feet (required) to 2.2 feet (proposed); (10) 
height of exterior lighting, from 14 feet (permitted) to 27 feet (proposed); (11) Old Kensico Road front yard 
setback to accessory storage building (storage shed, from 30 feet (required) to 21.8 feet (proposed); and (12) 
County Center Road side yard setback to accessory storage building (storage shed), from 40 feet (required) 
to 19.5 feet (proposed). The Applicant proposes to remove 16 landscaped trees in the existing parking area, 
requiring a Tree Removal Permit from the Planning Board, and has prepared a landscaping plan providing for 19 
trees and 270 shrubs, as replacement. The Applicant seeks waivers from the Planning Board for the required 10-
foot landscaped buffers on all sides of the property. The Applicant has prepared a traffic impact study, which has 
been reviewed by the Town’s traffic consultant for this project. The subject properties consist of approximately 
75,065 sq. ft. (1.7 acres) and are situated on the northerly side of Tarrytown Road, at the intersection of Tarrytown 
Road and Old Kensico Road. The properties within the Town of Greenburgh are located in the DS Designed 
Shopping District, are designated on the tax map of the Town of Greenburgh as Parcel ID: 7.570-328-1 & 2, and 
in total consist of approximately 55,912 sq. ft. The properties within the City of White Plains are located within 
the B-3 Business District, are designated as Parcel ID: 125.57-3-1 & 2, and in total consist of approximately 19,153 
sq. ft.

On May 18, 2022, the Planning Board, at its regularly scheduled meeting, conducted a pre-submission conference 
on the potential project. 



Case No. PB 22-07 Chick-fil-A
20 Tarrytown Road, P.O. White Plains, NY

Planning Board Recommendation to ZBA (Area Variances)
March 7, 2024

(2)

On September 20, 2023, October 4, 2023, November 1, 2023, January 3, 2024, and February 21, 2024, the Planning 
Board, at its regularly scheduled work sessions, heard presentations from the Applicant’s representatives
concerning the formally submitted project.

On November 15, 2023, the Planning Board, at its regularly scheduled meeting, held a public discussion to receive 
input from members of the public on the project.

On March 6, 2024, the Planning Board, at its regularly scheduled work session, as part of a Coordinated Review 
under SEQRA (Zoning Board of Appeals – Involved Agency, City of White Plains – Involved Agency, 
Westchester County Planning Board – Interested Agency, NYSDOT – Interested Agency), determined that the 
project is an Unlisted Action, issued a SEQRA Negative Declaration, and discussed providing its recommendation 
to the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA), associated with twelve (12) area variances, as outlined in a memorandum
issued by the Town of Greenburgh Building Inspector, Mr. Frank Morabito, dated February 13, 2023, revised 
October 24, 2023 (attached as an appendix). Present at the meeting were Chairperson Hugh Schwartz, Mr. Thomas 
Hay, Mr. Michael Golden, Mr. Walter Simon, Mr. Kirit Desai, Mr. Johan Snaggs, Ms. Leslie Davis, and Ms. Aisha 
Sparks (Alternate Non-Voting Member).

1. On March 6, 2024, on a motion made by Mr. Golden and seconded by Mr. Desai, the Planning Board, 
with seven (7) members present, unanimously voted to issue a neutral recommendation to the Zoning 
Board of Appeals related to the twelve (12) area variances required by the Applicant.

Findings:
The Planning Board finds that, while the number of area variances required in connection with the project is 
significant, many of the variances are improvements over existing conditions. Specifically, the following area 
variances are either improvements on existing conditions, or remain the same as existing conditions: Variances 
(2), (3), (4), (5), (7), (8), and (9) as listed on the previous page. Together, these account for over one-half of the 
required area variances. Additionally, the side and front yard parking setback variances are required in part due 
to the Planning Board’s desire to have an extendable drive-thru queuing lane, to reduce the risk of off-site traffic 
impacts. The Planning Board does find, however, that the proposed use is of such an intensity from a traffic 
volume perspective, that the design of the site and number of area variances required are closely correlated. While 
some of the variances required (as noted above) represent improvements or no change when compared to the 
prior CVS Pharmacy layout, due to the overall number of variances required, the Planning Board does not find 
itself to be in a position to take a positive or negative position, and therefore makes a neutral recommendation to 
the Zoning Board of Appeals. The Planning Board stresses that a neutral recommendation is not to be construed 
as a negative recommendation, and notes that it does not object to any of these area variances being granted.

cc: Lisa Nero, Town Clerk; 
Planning Board; 
J. Danko, Esq. Town Attorney; 
C. Gottlieb, Esq., Applicant’s Attorney; 
T . Freitag, PE, Applicant’s Engineer; 
P. Grealy, P.E., Applicant's Traffic Engineer



SEQR Negative Declaration PB 22-07 Page 1

1

14-20-7(2/87)-9c
SEQR

617.21
Appendix F

State Environmental Quality Review
NEGATIVE DECLARATION

Notice of Determination of Non-significance

Project Number: PB# 22-07 Date: March 6, 2024

This notice is issued pursuant to Part 617 of the implementing regulations pertaining to Article 8 (State Environmental 
Quality Review Act) of the Environmental Conservation Law.

The Town of Greenburgh Planning Board, as Lead Agency and as part of a coordinated review (Zoning Board of 
Appeals – Involved Agency, City of White Plains – Involved Agency, Westchester County Planning Board –
Interested Agency, NYSDOT – Interested Agency), has determined that the “Proposed Action” described below will 
not have a significant impact on the environment and a Draft Environmental Impact Statement will not be prepared.

Name of Action: PB 22-07 Chick-fil-A – 20 Tarrytown Road (P.O. White Plains, NY)

SEQR Status: Type 1 £
Unlisted       ¢

Conditioned Negative Declaration: Yes £
No ¢

Description of Action: A Planning Board Site Plan, Special Use Permit (Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment), 
and Tree Removal Permit application involving the demolition of a former CVS Pharmacy and the proposed 
construction of a Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment, with related improvements. The Applicant proposes to 
construct a 5,028 sq. ft., 94-seat (74 interior, 20 exterior) Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment, with a double-lane 
drive-thru. The property has existing curb cuts on Old Kensico Road and on County Center Road. The Applicant 
proposes to relocate the curb cut on Old Kensico Road and add a curb cut to County Center Road. The Applicant 
proposes 112 parking spaces (79 striped, 33 credited for drive-thru), where 143 spaces are required. A total of thirty 
(30) off-street parking spaces, dedicated for employee parking, are proposed to be situated on an adjacent lot located 
within the City of White Plains zoned Business (B-3), requiring additional approval from the city. The following 
area variances are required in connection with the project, as proposed: (1) Side yard setback to detached 
canopy, from 40 feet (required) to 6.8 feet (proposed); (2) Tarrytown Road side yard setback to principle
building, from 40 feet (required) to 36.8 feet (proposed); (3) County Center Road side yard setback to principle 
building, from 40 feet (required) to 5.4 feet (proposed); (4) Total of two side yards, from 80 feet (required) to 
42.2 feet (proposed); (5) Distance from off-street parking to principal building, from 10 feet (required) to 7.7 
feet/0 feet for the parking lot/drive -thru (proposed); (6) Off-street parking spaces, from 143 (required) to 112 
(proposed); (7) Distance from off-street parking to front lot line, from 20 feet (required) to 3.4 feet (proposed); 
(8) Distance from off-street parking to side lot line (County Center Road), from 10 feet (required) to 2.4 feet 
(proposed); (9) Distance from off-street parking to side lot line (Tarrytown Road), from 10 feet (required) to 
2.2 feet (proposed); (10) Height of exterior lighting, from 14 feet (permitted) to 27 feet (proposed); (11) Old 
Kensico Road front yard setback to accessory storage building (storage shed, from 30 feet (required) to 21.8 
feet (proposed); and (12) County Center Road side yard setback to accessory storage building (storage shed), 
from 40 feet (required) to 19.5 feet (proposed). The Applicant proposes to remove 16 landscaped trees from the 
site, requiring a Tree Removal Permit from the Planning Board, and has prepared a landscaping plan providing for 
the planting of 19 trees and 270 shrubs, as replacement. The Applicant seeks waivers from the Planning Board for 
the required 10-foot landscaped buffers on all sides of the property. The Applicant has prepared a traffic impact study
and a grand opening/high-volume traffic management plan, which have been reviewed extensively by the Town’s 
traffic consultant for this project. 



SEQR Negative Declaration PB 22-07 Page 2

2

The subject properties consist of approximately 75,065 sq. ft. (1.7 acres) and are situated on the northerly side of 
Tarrytown Road, at the intersection of Tarrytown Road and Old Kensico Road. The properties within the Town of 
Greenburgh are located in the DS Designed Shopping District, are designated on the tax map of the Town of 
Greenburgh as Parcel ID: 7.570-328-1 & 2, and in total consist of approximately 55,912 sq. ft. The properties within 
the City of White Plains are located within the B-3 Business District, are designated as Parcel ID: 125.57-3-1 & 2, 
and in total consist of approximately 19,153 sq. ft.

Reasons Supporting This Determination:
This determination of non-significance is based upon the Environmental Assessment Form (EAF) that was prepared 
by the Applicant and upon the criteria contained in Section 617.7 of SEQRA.

The Planning Board conducted a coordinated review (Zoning Board of Appeals – Involved Agency, City of White 
Plains – Involved Agency, Westchester County Planning Board – Interested Agency, NYSDOT – Interested Agency)
and analysis of all of the information provided by the Applicant and the potential environmental impacts associated 
with the proposed project. It has reviewed Part 1 of the EAF, the Town’s Site Plan Application Form, Planning Board 
Special Permit Application Form, Tree Removal Permit Application Form, Environmental Clearance Form, Steep 
Slope and Wetland/Watercourse Clearance Forms, and project plans and reports prepared by the Applicant. The 
Planning Board also has received comments from Town professional staff, the public, the Town’s Traffic Consultant, 
the Westchester County Planning Board, and NYSDOT on this project.

The Town of Greenburgh Planning Board held a pre-submission conference on May 18, 2022, held work sessions on 
September 20, 2023, October 4, 2023, November 1, 2023, January 3, 2024, February 21, 2024, and March 6, 2024, 
and a public discussion on November 15, 2023, in connection with this project. As a result of the coordinated review 
and upon requests by the Planning Board, Town staff, and the Town’s Traffic Consultant, the Applicant revised its 
plans to: (1) adjust the drive-thru entrance to facilitate expanding the drive-thru queue when necessary; (2) turn the 
drive-thru approach into a one-way, to facilitate expanding the drive-thru queue when necessary; and (3) widen of 
Old Kensico Road to allow for improved traffic flow. The Applicant additionally prepared a Traffic Management 
Plan with input from the Planning Board, Town staff, and the Town’s Traffic Consultant, to be implemented at site 
opening and at times where there is more demand for the drive-thru than expected during normal periods of activity 
on the site.

Based upon all of the information generated for the proposed project and its own careful and thorough review and 
discussion of the potential environmental impacts, the Planning Board directed Planning staff to complete Part 2 of 
the EAF, which it incorporates herein by reference. The EAF has aided the Planning Board’s determination. As 
described in Part 2 of the EAF, the Town Board has identified a number of small potential impacts with respect to:
impact on land use/zoning, land, community character, traffic/transportation, drainage, and noise, odor, and air.

PROJECT IMPACTS AND THEIR MAGNITUDE

1) IMPACT ON LAND USE/ZONING
Will the Proposed Action create a material conflict with an adopted land use plan or zoning regulations? 

The Proposed Action will increase the intensity of the commercial use of the land when compared to the prior CVS 
Pharmacy use. The Proposed Action would not create a material conflict with an adopted land use plan. The proposed 
use is permitted by Special Use Permit in the DS District.

The Proposed Action requires twelve (12) Area Variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals. In a memorandum 
issued February 13, 2023, and amended October 24, 2023, the Town Building Inspector determined that the following 
Area Variances are required in connection with the project, as proposed:  

1. Side yard setback to detached canopy structure – 40 feet required, 6.8 feet proposed;
2. Tarrytown Road side yard setback to principal building – 40 feet required, 36.8 feet proposed;



SEQR Negative Declaration PB 22-07 Page 3

3

3. County Center Road side yard setback to principal building – 40 feet required, 5.4 feet proposed;
4. Total of two side yards – 80 feet required, 42.2 feet proposed;
5. Distance from off-street parking to principal building – 10 feet required, 7.7 feet/0 feet proposed 

(parking lot/drive -thru, respectively);
6. Off-street parking spaces – 143 required, 112 proposed;
7. Distance from off-street parking to front lot line – 20 feet required, 3.4 feet proposed;
8. Distance from off-street parking to side lot line (County Center Road) – 10 feet required, 2.4 feet 

proposed;
9. Distance from off-street parking to side lot line (Tarrytown Road) – 10 feet required, 2.2 feet 

proposed;
10. Height of exterior lighting – 14 feet permitted, 27 feet proposed;
11. Old Kensico Road front yard setback to accessory storage building (storage shed) – 30 feet required, 

21.8 feet proposed; and
12. County Center Road side yard setback to accessory storage building (storage shed) – 40 feet 

required, 19.5 feet proposed.

The Proposed Action requires a larger number of variances than is typically seen in connection with a Site Plan 
application.

2) IMPACT ON LAND
Will the Proposed Action result in a change in the use or intensity of use of land?

The Proposed Action will result in a physical change to the project site. The Applicant is proposing to construct a 
new, 5,028 sq. ft., 94-seat (74 interior, 20 exterior) Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment, with a double-lane drive-
thru. The property has existing curb cuts on Old Kensico Road and on County Center Road. The Applicant proposes 
to relocate the curb cut on Old Kensico Road and add a curb cut to County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to 
include 112 parking spaces (79 striped, 33 credited for drive-thru), where 143 spaces are required. A total of thirty 
(30) off-street parking spaces, dedicated for employee parking only, are proposed to be situated on an adjacent lot 
located within the City of White Plains zoned Business (B-3), requiring approval from the city. The Applicant’s 
application with the city is currently outstanding. The Applicant proposes to remove 16 landscaped trees from the 
site, requiring a Tree Removal Permit from the Planning Board, and has prepared a landscaping plan providing for 
the planting of 19 trees and 270 shrubs, as replacement. The Applicant seeks waivers from the Planning Board for 
the required 10-foot landscaped buffers on all sides of the property. The Applicant has prepared a traffic impact study 
and a Traffic Management Plan, which haves been reviewed extensively by the Town’s traffic.

The Proposed Action will result in a physical change to the project site. Impacts to land have been minimized with 
design changes and will be further mitigated through the inclusion of extensive landscaping. The intensity of use of 
land will change, as the proposed restaurant is projected to generate more traffic than the previously-existing CVS 
Pharmacy. The Traffic Management Plan and site design mitigates the impacts of the higher intensity of use to the 
greatest extent practicable.

3) IMPACT ON COMMUNITY CHARACTER
Will the Proposed Action impair the character or quality of the existing community?

The Proposed Action will change the type of commercial use of the land. The Applicant is proposing to construct a 
5,028 sq. ft., 94-seat (74 interior, 20 exterior) Quick Service/Fast Food Establishment with a double-lane drive-thru.  
The property has existing curb cuts on Old Kensico Road and on County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to 
relocate the curb cut on Old Kensico Road and add a curb cut to County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to 
include 112 parking spaces (79 striped, 33 credited for drive-thru), where 143 spaces are required. A total of thirty 
(30) off-street parking spaces, dedicated for employee parking only, are proposed to be situated on an adjacent lot 
located within the City of White Plains zoned Business (B-3), requiring approval from the city. The Applicant 
proposes to remove 16 landscaped trees in the existing parking area, requiring a Tree Removal Permit from the 
Planning Board, and has prepared a landscaping plan providing for the planting of 19 trees and 270 shrubs, as 



SEQR Negative Declaration PB 22-07 Page 4

4

replacement. The Applicant seeks waivers from the Planning Board for the required 10-foot landscaped buffers on 
all sides of the property. The Applicant has prepared a traffic impact study and a Traffic Management Plan, which 
haves been reviewed extensively by the Town’s Traffic Consultant.

The subject site is located in the vicinity of both multi-family and single-family residences, in a well-established 
residential neighborhood, as well as other commercial buildings and uses. The site currently contains a vacant former 
CVS Pharmacy building, proposed to be demolished and replaced with a quick service/fast-food restaurant and related 
drive-thru. While this is a change in the commercial use of the site, it is not out of character with the district and 
surrounding commercial area. Across Old Kensico Road is a former delicatessen with a drive-thru, and the subject 
site is surrounded on all sides by roadways. As noted, multi-family and single-family residences exist in the vicinity 
of the project site, with the multi-family residence situated across Old Kensico Road from the project site. The 
proposed use is anticipated to generate a high demand of customers and related traffic, especially around the 
lunchtime peak period identified in the Applicant’s Traffic Impact Study. The Applicant has prepared a Traffic 
Management Plan and implemented site design considerations, in consultation with the Planning Board, Town staff, 
and the Town’s Traffic Consultant, which, when carried out, have been deemed to adequately mitigate potential 
impacts to the community character. Among these mitigations are the widening of Old Kensico Road, restriping of 
the Old Kensico Road/County Center Road traffic circle, and new directional signage to encourage patrons to exit 
south to Tarrytown Road (NYS Route 119), rather than travel north through the adjacent single-family residential 
neighborhood. 

The Applicant’s proposal is not anticipated to significantly impair the character or quality of the surrounding 
community.

4) IMPACT ON CRITICAL ENIRONMENTAL AREA (CEA)
Will the Proposed Action have an impact on the environmental characteristics that caused the establishment of a 
Critical Environmental Area (CEA)?

The Proposed Action will not affect any Critical Environmental Areas (CEA).

5) IMPACT ON TRANSPORTATION
Will the Proposed Action result in an adverse change in the existing level of traffic or affect existing infrastructure 
for mass transit, biking or walkway?

The Proposed Action is projected to increase the level of traffic over existing and previously-existing conditions. The 
Applicant proposes to replace a former CVS Pharmacy with a Chick-fil-A fast-food restaurant and dual lane drive-
thru. The demand for Chick-fil-A, especially in the lunchtime peak period, is well-documented and therefore possible 
traffic impacts have been comprehensively reviewed. The design and mitigations are intended to ensure that no 
vehicles may queue off-site and cause congestion, traffic back-ups, or other deleterious effects. The Applicant has 
prepared a Traffic Management Plan and incorporated site design considerations, in consultation with the Planning 
Board, Town staff, and the Town’s Traffic Consultant, which, when carried out, have been deemed to adequately 
mitigate the potential impacts on traffic. The Applicant has revised its site plan to more easily allow for an expanded 
queuing aisle, gaining an additional 14-18 queuing spaces on top of the 33 standard queuing spaces proposed. The 
Applicant’s Traffic Management Plan contains details on employee locations and management of the queue, closing 
the Old Kensico Road entrance if needed, and utilizing the employee lot within the City of White Plains as additional 
queuing space if demand were that high. The Applicant has documented that it will engage with local Police in 
developing and implementing the Traffic Management Plan, to mitigate any off-site impacts. The Applicant has 
submitted data from eight (8) comparably-designed Chick-fil-A sites in the Northeast region, which indicate that a 
typical maximum queue rarely exceeds 30 vehicles, which the subject site is designed to accommodate. The Applicant 
has additionally proposed widening Old Kensico Road to provide a dedicated left-turn lane onto Tarrytown Road, 
fixing the adaptive traffic signal light at the intersection of Old Kensico Road and Tarrytown Road, restriping of the 
Old Kensico Road and County Center Road traffic circle for safer navigation, and striping out on-street parking 
spaces on County Center Road.



SEQR Negative Declaration PB 22-07 Page 5

5

The above mitigations, both at project construction and on-going as deemed necessary, serve to minimize impacts 
related to the increase in traffic caused by the Proposed Action. Existing infrastructure for mass transit, biking, or 
walkway is not anticipated to be adversely affected, as numerous site plan features factor in pedestrian safety. 

6) IMPACT ON ENERGY
Will the Proposed Action cause an increase in the use of energy and it fails to incorporate reasonably available energy 
conservation or renewable energy opportunities?

The Proposed Action will not result in the need for any additional energy sources.

The Proposed Action is not anticipated to result in a negative impact upon the community’s sources of fuel or energy 
supply. 

7) IMPACT ON WATER/WASTEWATER
Will the Proposed Action impact existing: 
a. public / private water supplies? 
b. public / private wastewater treatment utilities?

The Proposed Action will not negatively impact any public or private water supplies or wastewater treatment utilities . 
Any subsequent proposed use at this location would be subject to all applicable zoning regulations and would be 
reviewed for consistency with the Comprehensive Plan, as well as be subject to a separate SEQRA review process, 
if applicable.

8) IMPACT ON HISTORIC, ARCHAEOLOGICAL, ARCHITECTURAL OR AESTHETIC
RESOURCES
Will the Proposed Action impair the character or quality of important historic, archaeological, architectural or 
aesthetic resources?

The Proposed Action will not result in impacts to historic, archaeological, architectural, or aesthetic resources. Any 
subsequent proposed use at this location would be subject to all applicable zoning regulations and would be reviewed 
for consistency with the Comprehensive Plan, as well as be subject to a separate SEQRA review process, if applicable.

9) IMPACT ON NATURAL RESOURCES
Will the Proposed Action result in an adverse change to natural resources (e.g., wetlands, waterbodies, groundwater, 
air quality, flora and fauna)?

The project consists of the construction of a new, 5,028 sq. ft., 94-seat (74 interior, 20 exterior) Quick Service/Fast 
Food Establishment, with a double-lane drive-thru. The property has existing curb cuts on Old Kensico Road and on 
County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to relocate the curb cut on Old Kensico Road and add a curb cut to 
County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to include 112 parking spaces (79 striped, 33 credited for drive-thru), 
where 143 spaces are required. A total of thirty (30) off-street parking spaces, dedicated for employee parking only, 
are proposed to be situated on an adjacent lot located within the City of White Plains zoned Business (B-3), requiring 
approval from the city. The Applicant proposes to remove 16 landscaped trees in the existing parking area, requiring 
a Tree Removal Permit from the Planning Board, and has prepared a landscaping plan providing for 19 trees and 270 
shrubs, as replacement. The Applicant seeks waivers from the Planning Board for the required 10-foot landscaped 
buffers on all sides of the property. The Applicant has prepared a traffic impact study, which has been reviewed by 
the Town’s traffic consultant for this project.

The Proposed Action will not result in an adverse change to natural resources (including wetlands, waterbodies, 
groundwater, air quality, flora or fauna), as the trees proposed for removal will be replaced, and additional shrubs 
are also proposed for planting, all in compliance with the Town Tree Ordinance (Chapter 260).

10) IMPACT ON FLOODING & DRAINAGE



SEQR Negative Declaration PB 22-07 Page 6

6

Will the Proposed Action result in an increase in the potential for erosion, flooding or drainage problems?

The project consists of the construction of a new, 5,028 sq. ft., 94-seat (74 interior, 20 exterior) Quick Service/Fast 
Food Establishment, with a double-lane drive-thru. The property has existing curb cuts on Old Kensico Road and on 
County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to relocate the curb cut on Old Kensico Road and add a curb cut to 
County Center Road. The Applicant proposes to include 112 parking spaces (79 striped, 33 credited for drive-thru), 
where 143 spaces are required. A total of thirty (30) off-street parking spaces, dedicated for employee parking only, 
are proposed to be situated on an adjacent lot located within the City of White Plains zoned Business (B-3), requiring 
approval from the city. The Applicant proposes to remove 16 landscaped trees in the existing parking area, requiring 
a Tree Removal Permit from the Planning Board, and has prepared a landscaping plan providing for 19 trees and 270 
shrubs, as replacement. The Applicant seeks waivers from the Planning Board for the required 10-foot landscaped 
buffers on all sides of the property. The Applicant has prepared a traffic impact study, which has been reviewed by 
the Town’s traffic consultant for this project.

The Applicant will be reducing the impervious surface coverage compared to existing conditions. The Applicant is 
required to comply with the standards of Chapter 248 (Stormwater Management) of the Town Code.

The Proposed Action is not anticipated to result in an increase in the potential for erosion, flooding, or drainage 
problems. The site and surrounding properties will be protected during the course of work through implementation 
of the sediment and erosion control plan. The proposed stormwater management controls will address runoff on the
site, in compliance with Chapter 248 of the Town Code.

11) IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES & HUMAN HEALTH
Will the Proposed Action create a hazard to environmental resources or human health?

The Proposed Action involves the construction of a new Chick-fil-A fast-food restaurant and drive-thru. The drive-
thru is proposed to have queuing spaces for up to 33 vehicles, with a Traffic Management Plan that provides for an 
additional 14-18 vehicles of queuing. Vehicles in a drive-thru queue are necessarily stationary or near-stationary for 
periods of time, with the length of time being determined by the level of business and throughput. These vehicles, if 
they are internal combustion engine-powered, emit greenhouse gasses while they are in the queue. The environmental 
impact is not unique to this project, but affects all businesses with a drive-thru. Chick-fil-A has represented that it is 
efficient in processing customers, with about as many leaving the site as entering during peak periods, so the time 
spent in the queue will be as reduced as much as possible. With the proliferation of battery electric vehicles, this 
environmental concern will decline over time.

The Proposed Action is not anticipated to create a material hazard to environmental resources or human health.  

Conclusion
The Planning Board conducted a coordinated review (Zoning Board of Appeals – Involved Agency, City of White 
Plains – Involved Agency, Westchester County Planning Board – Interested Agency, NYSDOT – Interested Agency)
and analysis of the information provided and the potential environmental impacts associated with the proposed 
project. It has reviewed Part 1 of the EAF, the Town’s Site Plan Application Form, Planning Board Special Permit 
Application Form, Tree Removal Permit Application Form, Environmental Clearance Form, Steep Slope and 
Wetland/Watercourse Clearance Forms, and project plans and reports prepared by the Applicant, and having weighed 
all of the oral testimony presented at the relevant meetings and hearings. The Planning Board also has received 
comments from Town professional staff, the public, the Town’s Traffic Consultant, the Westchester County Planning 
Board, and NYSDOT on this project.

The Planning Board has completed a careful and thorough review of the identified areas of environmental concern. 
Based upon all of the information generated for the proposed project and a coordinated review (Zoning Board of 
Appeals – Involved Agency, City of White Plains – Involved Agency, Westchester County Planning Board –
Interested Agency, NYSDOT – Interested Agency) of the potential environmental impacts, the Planning Board has 
determined that the potential small to moderate impacts outlined in Part 2 of the EAF, individually as well as 



SEQR Negative Declaration PB 22-07 Page 7

7

cumulatively, are minimal and will not have a significant impact on the environment, subject to the various mitigation 
strategies outlined in this Negative Declaration and presented by the Applicant.

After reviewing the proposed project, the Planning Board has determined that a Negative Declaration will be issued 
related to the potential impacts for the Proposed Action outlined in Part 2 of the EAF, and that the Proposed Action 
will not have a significant impact on the environment, will be mitigated to the greatest extent practicable, and, 
therefore, does not require the preparation of an Environmental Impact Statement (“EIS”). 

If Conditioned Negative Declaration, provide on attachment the specific mitigation measures imposed. N/A

For Further Information:
Contact Person: Aaron Schmidt

Deputy Commissioner, Community Development and Conservation
Address: 177 Hillside Avenue

Greenburgh, NY 10607
Telephone Number: (914) 989-1538

Delivered by hand at:
Greenburgh Town Hall
177 Hillside Avenue
Greenburgh, NY 10607

Delivered by email to:
Town of Greenburgh Zoning Board of Appeals



   
Planning Board Meeting   5. 1.           
Meeting Date: 03/06/2024  

Information
Text/Header:
Case No. PB 23-24 Lee & Cheng, 260 South Healy Avenue (P.O. Scarsdale, N.Y.)
–Wetland/Watercourse Permit and Tree Removal Permit
A work session to discuss a Wetland/Watercourse Permit and Tree Removal Permit application
involving the proposed construction of a new single-family home on an existing lot. The
Applicant proposes to remove an existing, burnt-out single-family home and construct a new
home with related improvements. The Applicant proposes to disturb approximately 3,619 sq. ft. of
wetland/watercourse buffer area on the property, associated with an on-site watercourse. The
Applicant proposes the removal of one (1) regulated tree, requiring a Tree Removal Permit, and
has prepared a landscaping plan providing for the planting of four (4) trees, as replacement. The
property consists of approximately 23,339 sq. ft. (0.54 acres) and is situated on the easterly side of
South Healy Avenue, approximately 500 feet south of the intersection of South Healy Avenue
and Elizabeth Street. The property is located in the R-20 One-Family Residence District and is
designated on the tax map of the Town of Greenburgh as Parcel ID: 8.290-224-42.
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
PB 23-24 Application
PB 23-24 Plans
PB 23-24 CAC Recommendation
PB 23-24 Staff Report



 

WELCOME HOMES NY BUILDING COMPANY LLC  
andrew.vaccarello@welcomehomes.com 

908-698-3939 

 
Wednesday, December 20, 2023 

 
Town of Greenburgh 
Department of Community Development & Conservation 
177 Hillside Ave 
White Plains, NY, 10607 
Ph: (914) 989-1530  
 
Attn: Mr. Aaron Schmidt, ISA, Deputy Commissioner 
 
Re: 260 S Healy Avenue 
 Town of Greenburgh, New York 
 Tax Map Number: 8.290-224-42 
   
Dear Mr. Schmidt: 

Please find enclosed for your consideration submission materials for a project located at 260 Healy Avenue, Town of 
Greenburgh. The applicant is seeking a review by the Town of Greenburgh Planning Board for an encroachment into the 
regulated buffer of a water course that is situated on the subject property. 

The project located at 260 S Healy Ave (SBL: 8.290-224-42) is proposing to construct a two-story single-family house 
with associated site improvements on a 0.536-acre parcel. The subject property previously contained a wood framed 
dwelling that has been destroyed by a structure fire. The application will include the demolition of the existing structure 
to accommodate the proposed home with the associated site improvements. The site improvements include 
landscaping, an asphalt driveway, curbing, walkway, a deck, stormwater management system, and all supporting 
utilities. The project is proposing to remove one tree located to the east of the existing structure to accommodate the 
proposed development. The subject property contains steep slopes as defined in the Town of Greenburgh zoning 
ordinance section 245-3. The site was designed to limit disturbance into the areas of steep slopes to the maximum 
extent practicable and does not exceed the disturbance thresholds that would require a steep slopes permit. The site 
does contain a watercourse on the south side of the property. The 100-foot buffer associated with this watercourse 
does extend into the proposed limit of disturbance/ project area and therefore the application will fall under the 
jurisdiction of the Town of Greenburgh Planning Board for consideration under the Wetland/ Watercourse ordinance. 
The additional information regarding the application is summarized as follows: 
 

▪ The watercourse in question is a drainage feature that is located on the south side of the subject property. 
The watercourse is not known to contain any features that would be indicative of a wetland, but rather is noted 
as a conveyance path for drainage within the area. The watercourse feature is delineated by the topographic 
change to define the channel. The project is proposing to disturb a total of 3,619 SF of lands within the buffer, 
with no disturbance proposed to the watercourse itself.  

▪ The proposed activity is to construct a new single-family dwelling with associated site improvements. The site 
has been designed to limit disturbance in any steep slope areas and minimize disturbance to the watercourse 
buffer to the maximum extent practicable.  

▪ The disturbance cannot be located to another site because the property owner only maintains control of the 
property in question. Furthermore, it is anticipated that the development would benefit the neighborhood by 
removing an unsafe dilapidated dwelling and improving the property to contain a dwelling that will bring 
character to the neighborhood. 

▪ The site design was developed to propose the presented solution as it balances several constraints including 
zoning criteria, steep slopes, and the watercourse buffer. Additionally, the development is proposing 
improvements mostly within the previously disturbed areas of the property to limit further encroachment into 
the buffer.  

mailto:andrew.vaccarello@welcomehomes.com


▪ The site was designed to situate the house and the associated site infrastructure in a location that would 
avoid the steep slopes and wetland buffer as much as practicable. The proposed building pad was selected 
as the best location for the house due to the topography, and the location of the existing home. The proposed 
home location limits steep slope encroachment and allows as many of the existing trees to remain on site. 

▪ No endangered species of flora or fauna would be disturbed as part of the development. 
▪ The design of the site was focused on minimizing flooding, and providing appropriate structural safety, slope 

stability, and human enjoyment, while adapting the site to best utilize the natural terrain of the property.  
▪ No natural ridgelines would be disturbed as part of this development, and all grading has been proposed to 

blend seamlessly with the natural contours of the land.  
▪ All stabilization measures on the site will be proposed to limit soil erosion and will be installed in a timely 

fashion to ensure that all Town of Greenburgh requirements are met as set forth in Section 245-7(A). All 
topsoil will be stripped and stockpiled on site for reuse after the project has been regraded. The stockpile 
location is proposed in an area that is less than 15% slopes. 

 

Should you have any questions or require additional information regarding the matter please do not hesitate to contact me 
at (908) 698-3939 or via email at andrew.vaccarello@welcomehomes.com. 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 

WELCOME HOMES NY BUILDING COMPANY LLC  
 

 

Andrew Vaccarello 
Director of Pre-Construction 

mailto:andrew.vaccarello@welcomehomes.com








 

WELCOME HOMES NY BUILDING COMPANY LLC  
andrew.vaccarello@welcomehomes.com 

908-698-3939 

 
Tuesday, November 21, 2023 

 
Town of Greenburgh 
Department of Community Development & Conservation 
177 Hillside Ave 
White Plains, NY, 10607 
Ph: (914) 989-1530  
 
Attn: Mr. Aaron Schmidt, ISA, Deputy Commissioner 
 
Re: 260 S Healy Avenue 
 Town of Greenburgh, New York 
 Tax Map Number: 8.290-224-42 
   
Dear Mr. Schmidt: 

Please find enclosed for your consideration submission materials for a project located at 260 Healy Avenue, Town of 
Greenburgh. The applicant is seeking a review by the Town of Greenburgh Planning Board for an encroachment into the 
regulated buffer of a water course that is situated on the subject property. 

The project located at 260 S Healy Ave (SBL: 8.290-224-42) is proposing to construct a two-story single-family house 
with associated site improvements on a 0.536-acre parcel. The subject property previously contained a wood framed 
dwelling that has been destroyed by a structure fire. The application will include the demolition of the existing structure 
to accommodate the proposed home with the associated site improvements. The site improvements include 
landscaping, an asphalt driveway, curbing, walkway, a deck, stormwater management system, and all supporting 
utilities. The project is proposing to remove one tree located to the east of the existing structure to accommodate the 
proposed development. The subject property contains steep slopes as defined in the Town of Greenburgh zoning 
ordinance section 245-3. The site was designed to limit disturbance into the areas of steep slopes to the maximum 
extent practicable and does not exceed the disturbance thresholds that would require a steep slopes permit. The site 
does contain a watercourse on the south side of the property. The 100-foot buffer associated with this watercourse 
does extend into the proposed limit of disturbance/ project area and therefore the application will fall under the 
jurisdiction of the Town of Greenburgh Planning Board for consideration under the Wetland/ Watercourse ordinance. 
The additional information regarding the application is summarized as follows: 
 

▪ The watercourse in question is a drainage feature that is located on the south side of the subject property. 
The watercourse is not known to contain any features that would be indicative of a wetland, but rather is noted 
as a conveyance path for drainage within the area. The watercourse feature is delineated by the topographic 
change to define the channel. The project is proposing to disturb a total of 3,619 SF of lands within the buffer, 
with no disturbance proposed to the watercourse itself.  

▪ The proposed activity is to construct a new single-family dwelling with associated site improvements. The site 
has been designed to limit disturbance in any steep slope areas and minimize disturbance to the watercourse 
buffer to the maximum extent practicable.  

▪ The disturbance cannot be located to another site because the property owner only maintains control of the 
property in question. Furthermore, it is anticipated that the development would benefit the neighborhood by 
removing an unsafe dilapidated dwelling and improving the property to contain a dwelling that will bring 
character to the neighborhood. 

▪ The site design was developed to propose the presented solution as it balances several constraints including 
zoning criteria, steep slopes, and the watercourse buffer. Additionally, the development is proposing 
improvements mostly within the previously disturbed areas of the property to limit further encroachment into 
the buffer.  

mailto:andrew.vaccarello@welcomehomes.com


▪ The site was designed to situate the house and the associated site infrastructure in a location that would 
avoid the steep slopes and wetland buffer as much as practicable. The proposed building pad was selected 
as the best location for the house due to the topography, and the location of the existing home. The proposed 
home location limits steep slope encroachment and allows as many of the existing trees to remain on site. 

▪ No endangered species of flora or fauna would be disturbed as part of the development. 
▪ The design of the site was focused on minimizing flooding, and providing appropriate structural safety, slope 

stability, and human enjoyment, while adapting the site to best utilize the natural terrain of the property.  
▪ No natural ridgelines would be disturbed as part of this development, and all grading has been proposed to 

blend seamlessly with the natural contours of the land.  
▪ All stabilization measures on the site will be proposed to limit soil erosion and will be installed in a timely 

fashion to ensure that all Town of Greenburgh requirements are met as set forth in Section 245-7(A). All 
topsoil will be stripped and stockpiled on site for reuse after the project has been regraded. The stockpile 
location is proposed in an area that is less than 15% slopes. 

 

Should you have any questions or require additional information regarding the matter please do not hesitate to contact me 
at (908) 698-3939 or via email at andrew.vaccarello@welcomehomes.com. 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 

WELCOME HOMES NY BUILDING COMPANY LLC  
 

 

Andrew Vaccarello 
Director of Pre-Construction 

mailto:andrew.vaccarello@welcomehomes.com




































PREPARER'S NAME:  ____________________________________

PERMIT:  ____________________________________________

DATE: ____________________________________

OWNER:_________________________________________________  ZONING DISTRICT _____________________
 

PROPERTY LOCATION:  ____________________________________________________________________________
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:     VOL:  _______ SHEET:  _______ BLOCK:_________ LOT: ________

REAR (IN FEET)

TO PRINCIPAL BUILDING (IN FEET)

 

PERMITTED EXISTING PROPOSED

PERMITTED EXISTING PROPOSED

PROPOSED

BUILDING HEIGHT (IN FEET) see reverse

TOTAL HEIGHT (IN FEET)

TOTAL PARKING SPACES

NUMBER OF STORIES

LOADING AREA

 PARKING/DRIVEWAY SETBACKS

 HEIGHT, PARKING SPACES, LOADING AREA

TO PRINCIPAL BUILDING (IN FEET)

FRONT (IN FEET)

ONE SIDE (IN FEET)

TOTAL OF TWO SIDES (IN FEET)

REAR (IN FEET)

PERMITTED EXISTING

SIDE (IN FEET)

REAR (IN FEET)

PROPOSEDPERMITTED EXISTING

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE COVERAGE see definition 
on reverse  (IN PERCENT)
TOTAL GROSS FLOOR AREA (FAR) see definintion 
on reverse  (IN SQUARE FEET) 

PERMITTED EXISTING

YARD SETBACK - PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE

TOTAL OF TWO SIDES (IN FEET)

ONE SIDE (IN FEET)

FRONT (IN FEET)

PROPOSED

YARD SETBACK - ACCESSORY STRUCTURE

TOWN OF GREENBURGH BUILDING DEPARTMENT
ZONING COMPLIANCE FORM

If an architect/engineer is required, this form must be completed by the design professional and include 
the seal and signature of preparer.

PRINCIPAL BUILDING COVERAGE
 (IN PERCENT)

BUILDABLE LOT AREA - total lot area minus deductions 
for steep slopes/wetlands (IN SQUARE FT)

LOT AREA (IN SQUARE FEET)

Design Professional's 
 Seal

 COVERAGE REQUIREMENTS

Tommy Maene (Hartland Engineering, DPC)

November 6, 2023

Vivian Lee & Warren Cheng R-20

260 S Healy Avenue, Greenburgh, NY 10583

8.290 224 4223,339

20,000 23,339 23,339

19,252 19,252 19,252

30

18

40

32

41.7

27.2

91.0

42.2

47.7

25.0

56.0

55.4

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

4,959 - 4,269

18% 10.1% 12.0%

29% 17.6% 24.1%

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

30 17 27.04

2.5 1.5 2.0

30 17 27.04



One-Family
Residence 

Zone Min. Lot
 Area sq. ft. Front Rear One Side

Total of 
two Sides

Principal
Building

Accessory
Building (s)

Impervious
Surfaces

Minimum Lot 
Width

R-40 40,000 40 36 25 50 14% 3.50% 21.75% 150
Detached Accessory Structures/Off Street Parking Areas Must Be At Least

R-30 30,000 35 34 20 45 16% 4.00% 25% 135
Detached Accessory Structures/Off Street Parking Areas Must Be At Least

R-20 20,000 30 32 18 40 18% 4.50% 29% 120
Detached Accessory Structures/Off Street Parking Areas Must Be At Least

R-15 15,000 27 30 14 30 20% 5.00% 33.50% 115
Detached Accessory Structures/Off Street Parking Areas Must Be At Least

R-10 10,000 25 28 12 26 22% 5.50% 37.25% 100
Detached Accessory Structures/Off Street Parking Areas Must Be At Least

R-7.5 7,500 20 26 10 22 24% 6.00% 40.75% 75
Detached Accessory Structures/Off Street Parking Areas Must Be At Least

R-5 5,000 20 26 8 18 43.75% 50
Detached Accessory Structures/Off Street Parking Areas Must Be At Least 8' from Principal Structure, 8' from Side, 8' from Rear

Minimum Yards Maximum Coverage

30% (all buildings)

10' from Principal Structure, 20' from Side, 20' from Rear

10' from Principal Structure, 18' from Side, 18' from Rear

10' from Principal Structure, 16' from Side, 16' from Rear

10' from Principal Structure, 14' from Side, 14' from Rear

10' from Principal Structure, 12' from Side, 12' from Rear

10' from Principal Structure, 10' from Side, 10' from Rear

HEIGHT  -- The vertical distance to the level of the highest point of the roof for flat or mansard roofs, or to the mean height between 
the eave and the ridge for other types of roofs, measured at the center of the front wall of the building from the average level of the 
finished ground surface across the front of the building or from the average level of the finished ground surface adjacent to the exterior
walls of the building, whichever is lower. Where the finished ground surface is made by filling, the level of such finished ground 
surface for the purpose of this definition shall not be deemed to be more than 10 feet above or below the established grade of the curb
of the street which the building faces; or, if there is no curb, the established grade of the center of the street which the building faces. 
Chimneys, elevator penthouses, tanks and similar projections located on any building other than an office or agency for scientific 
research or technical development or on a laboratory shall not be included in such measurements, provided that such projection does 
not occupy more than 15% of the roof area, and further provided that such projection does not exceed 15 feet 
in height. Chimneys, elevator penthouses, tanks and similar projections located on an office or agency for scientific research or 
technical development or on a laboratory shall not be included in such measurements, provided that such projection does not occupy 
more than 80% of the roof area, and further provided that such projection does not exceed 30 feet in height. Notwithstanding the 
above, in the case of residential buildings on sloping sites limited to 2 1/2 stories (where basements or cellars do not constitute a story
as defined below), the finished grade of a building shall be measured from one foot below the first floor elevation; provided, however, 
that the height of the highest wall, measured from the average grade along that wall to the lowest point of the eave or lower edge of 
the roof, shall not exceed 28 feet. [Amended 7-8-1987 by L.L. No. 3-1986; 11-9-1994 by L.L. No. 9-1994]   

FLOOR AREA RATIO (FAR)  -- The gross floor area divided by the lot area. [Amended 6-11-2003 by L.L. No. 5-2003]   

IMPERVIOUS SURFACES, GROSS COVERAGE  -- The sum of the horizontal area of coverage or footprint of all buildings, 
structures, paved areas, patios and other improved surfaces on a lot preventing natural runoff to percolate into the soil, measured in 
square feet. Areas paved with gravel, crushed stone and other materials used to support vehicles shall be considered impervious 
surfaces for the purposes of this chapter. Swimming pools and tennis courts that are unenclosed shall not be considered impervious 
surfaces for the purposes of this chapter. [Added 7-8-1987 by L.L. No. 3-1987]  

FLOOR AREA, GROSS (MULTIFAMILY AND NONRESIDENTIAL)  -- The sum of the horizontal area of all stories of a building, 
measured from the exterior faces of exterior walls, or, in the case of a common wall separating two buildings, from the center line of 
such common walls, but excluding unenclosed porches, porticoes, balconies, raised platforms, roof overhangs, gutters and chimneys, 
and nonhabitable space in a basement devoted to mechanical equipment, accessory storage, parking and/or loading. [Amended 6-11-
2003 by L.L. No. 5-2003]   

FLOOR AREA, GROSS (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL)  -- For all one-family dwellings, the sum of the horizontal area of all stories of 
a building, measured from the exterior faces of exterior walls. Any interior space with a floor-to-ceiling height in excess of 16 feet shall 
be counted twice. In calculating the gross floor area of a one-family dwelling, and for the purpose of calculating floor area ratio (FAR), 
the following shall be excluded: decks; patios; unenclosed porches, porticoes, balconies and raised platforms; roof overhangs; gutters;
chimneys; minor accessory structures; and basements and garages in which the surface of the floor above such basement or garage 
is less than four feet above the average finished grade of the ground adjoining the building. [Added 6-11-2003 by L.L. No. 5-2003]   

FLOOR AREA, LIVABLE  -- All spaces within the exterior walls of a dwelling unit, exclusive of garages, breezeways, unheated 
porches, cellars, heater rooms and basements having a window area of less than 12% of the square foot area of the room. Usable 
floor area shall be deemed to include all spaces not otherwise excluded above, such as principal rooms, utility rooms, bathrooms, all 
closets and hallways opening directly into any rooms within the dwelling unit and all attic space having a clear height of at least seven 
feet six inches from finished floor level to ceiling level over 50% of the area of such attic space.   



















 

 
260 Healy Ave 

SBL: 8.290-224-42 
Town of Greenburgh 

Westchester County, New York 
Tree Removal Permit Submission 

11/21/2023 
 

The following submission documents are included in this application to facilitate the Tree Removal Permit application 
for the Town of Greenburgh.  

 
1. Tax Map: 

 
 

  



 

2. Adjoining Property Owners: 
 

SBL Property Address Owner Name Mailing Address 

8.290-222-7..SE 247 HEALY AVE 
UNIT SE 

CHIOU, TERU H  CHIOU, 
KATRINE K 

247 S HEALY AVE  
SCARSDALE, NY 

10583 

8.290-222-6 255 HEALY AVE PORADOWSKI, LECH M 255 S HEALY AVE  
SCARSDALE, NY 

10583 

8.290-222-5 257 HEALY AVE LI, RUOGU  ZHONG, 
BIJUAN 

257 S HEALY AVE  
SCARSDALE, NY 

10583 

8.290-222-4 249 HEALY AVE MATHEW, MATHAI  
MATHEW, TESSY 

249 S HEALY AVE  
SCARSDALE, NY 

10583 

8.290-224-43 278 S HEALY AVE LOO(TRUST), ELIO  
LOO(TRUST),  

JUANITA 

278 S HEALY AVE  
SCARSDALE, NY 

10583 

8.290-224-12 0 MEADOWVIEW DR ROSENBERG, ROBERT A  
COOK,  

PATRICIA 

15 MEADOWVIEW 
DR  

HARTSDALE, NY 
10530 

8.290-224-19 12 KEATING PL RICHARDSON, SANDRA  12 KEATING PL  
HARTSDALE, NY 

10530 

8.290-224-40..SG 264 HEALY AVE 
UNIT SG 

ZOUZIAS, GEORGE  
ZOUZIAS, HELEN 

264 S HEALY AVE  
SCARSDALE, NY 

10583 

8.290-224-40..SE 264 HEALY AVE 
UNIT SE 

ZOUZIAS, GEORGE  
ZOUZIAS, HELEN 

264 S HEALY AVE  
SCARSDALE, NY 

10583 

 
3. Site Plan: Please see the “Site Plan” Prepared by Hartland Engineering dated 8/25/2023, last revised 

11/7/2023. 
 

4. Written Narrative Outlining Proposed Landscaping: The project located at 260 Healy Ave (SBL: 8.290-224-
42) is proposing to construct a two-story single-family house with associated site improvements. The site 
improvements include an asphalt driveway, curbing, walkway, a deck, stormwater management system, and 
all supporting utilities. The project is proposing to remove one (1) tree located to the rear of the existing 
home that is set to be demolished. The tree is being removed to accommodate the proposed development. 
The proposed specifies are all native and planned to increase the natural aesthetic of the property. The list 
of specifies proposed are as follows: 

a. One (1) Ostrya Virginiana 
b. One (1) Abies Concolor 
c. One (1) Magnolia acuminata 
d. One (1) Acer Rubrum 

It is noted that the proposed plantings will meet the minimum requirements set forth in the Town of 
Greenburgh ordinance. 
 

5. Certificate of Insurance: COIs have been included of the general contractor on the project.  



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

Steve KangPRODUCER

800-647-1905 347-704-7702
info@s5s.biz

INSURED

04/01/2023

 
 

04/01/2024

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

PNL Global Inc DBA S5S

4025 150th Street #2 STO
Flushing, NY 11354

11/14/2023

    5,000

X

X
X

A

2,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000

 100,000
 1,000,000

X L257000806

Town of Greenburgh 
177 Hillside Avenue 
Greenburgh, NY 10607

Atlantic Casualty Insurance Company

AWJ & Associates, LLC 
265 Pleasantville RD 
Pleasantville, NY 10570-2735

B

NorGUARD Insurance Company

AWWC357180 04/01/2023 04/01/2024 100,000
500,000
100,000

C Disability Benefit DBL661958 03/17/2023 03/17/2024 included 

The Certificate Holder and Putnam County is listed as additionally insured. 

The Shelterpoints Life Insurance Company 

42846
31470
81434



AWJ & ASSOCIATES, LLC

PO Box 690
Armonk, NY 10504

265 Pleasantville Rd, Pleasantville, NY 10570-2735

 

914-817-4091

82-0646944

800-673-2465

X

Dave Simmons
 

11/14/2023

Vice President of Sales

NorGUARD Insurance Company

AWWC357180

04/01/2023 04/01/2024

N/A

Town of Greenburgh 

177 Hillside Avenue 

Greenburgh, NY 10607



�����������	
�����
�
��	����������	�����������������������
��
�	
�
����������
��������
��
����������
���
������� ��������
�!"#�$%&"'�(")%�*�+,,-%..�/0�12.3-%,�43.%�.5-%%5�",,-%..�/2'67�8/-9�$/:"5;/2�/0�12.3-%,�<=>?@�ABCDEABF�EG�HIJBAKLB�EM�MNBHEGEHK??@�?EOEPBF�PI�HBAPKE>�?IHKPEI>M�E>�QBR�SIAT�UPKPBV�EWBWV�XAKNYZN�[I?EH@\�
!]#�̂3.;2%..�_%'%̀a/2%�(3)]%-�/0�12.3-%,�!:#�b%,%-"'�c)̀ '/6%-�1,%25;0;:"5;/2�(3)]%-�/0�12.3-%,�/-�d/:;"'�d%:3-;56�(3)]%-�e#(")%�"2,�+,,-%..�/0�c25;56�f%g3%.5;2&�h-//0�/0�i/j%-"&%4c25;56�̂%;2&�$;.5%,�".�5a%�i%-5;0;:"5%�k/',%-7 l"#�(")%�/0�12.3-"2:%�i"--;%-�l]#�h/';:6�(3)]%-�/0�c25;56�$;.5%,�;2�̂/m�n!"n�l:#�h/';:6�%00%:5;j%�̀%-;/,� 5/�o#�h/';:6�̀-/j;,%.�5a%�0/''/p;2&�]%2%0;5.q+#̂/5a�,;."];';56�"2,�̀";,�0");'6�'%"j%�]%2%0;5.##̂r;."];';56�]%2%0;5.�/2'6#i#h";,�0");'6�'%"j%�]%2%0;5.�/2'6#s#�h/';:6�:/j%-.q+#+''�/0�5a%�%)̀ '/6%-t.�%)̀ '/6%%.�%';&;]'%�32,%-�5a%�(ud�r;."];';56�"2,�h";,�b");'6�$%"j%�̂%2%0;5.�$"p##̂v2'6�5a%�0/''/p;2&�:'"..�/-�:'"..%.�/0�%)̀ '/6%-t.�%) '̀/6%%.qw2,%-�̀%2"'56�/0�̀%-x3-6y�1�:%-5;06�5a"5�1�")�"2�"35a/-;z%,�-%̀-%.%25"5;j%�/-�';:%2.%,�"&%25�/0�5a%�;2.3-"2:%�:"--;%-�-%0%-%2:%,�"]/j%�"2,�5a"5�5a%�2")%,�;2.3-%,�a".�(ud�r;."];';56�"2,{/-�h";,�b");'6�$%"j%�̂%2%0;5.�;2.3-"2:%�:/j%-"&%�".�,%.:-;]%,�"]/j%#�r"5%�d;&2%,� 6̂� |}~�����������~�������������~�����������~���������������~��������}��~�������������������������������~�������������~����_%'%̀a/2%�(3)]%-� (")%�"2,�_;5'%�1�hvf_+(_q��10�̂/m%.�o+�"2,�s+�"-%�:a%:9%,y�"2,�5a;.�0/-)�;.�.;&2%,�]6�5a%�;2.3-"2:%�:"--;%-t.�"35a/-;z%,�-%̀-%.%25"5;j%�/-�(ud�$;:%2.%,�12.3-"2:%�+&%25�/0�5a"5�:"--;%-y�5a;.�:%-5;0;:"5%�;.�iv�h$c_c#��";'�;5�,;-%:5'6�5/�5a%�:%-5;0;:"5%�a/',%-#�10�̂/m�ôy�oi�/-�ŝ�;.�:a%:9%,y�5a;.�:%-5;0;:"5%�;.�(v_�iv�h$c_c�0/-�̀3-̀/.%.�/0�d%:5;/2�ee�y�d3],#���/0�5a%�(ud�r;."];';56�"2,�h";,�b");'6�$%"j%�̂%2%0;5.�$"p#�15�)3.5�]%���������� �¡¢£¤¥¦§̈©ª̈« ¬� ����¦�©�§��)";'%,�0/-:/)̀ '%5;/2�5/�5a%�8/-9%-.t�i/)̀ %2."5;/2�̂/"-,y�h'"2.�+::%̀5"2:%�w2;5y�hv�̂/m�se��y�̂;2&a")5/2y�(u�!l®�ēse��#�°±²³�́µ�³¶�·̧�¹¶º»¼̧½̧¾�·¿�½À̧�ÁÂÃ�Ä¶ÅÆ̧ÅÇÈ�É¶º»̧ÊÇË½Ì¶Ê�Í¶ËÅ¾�ÎÏÐÑÒ�ÓÔ�ÕÖ×�ØÕÙ�ØÚ�ÖÛ�ÜÕ�ÝÞßà�áààÐ�âÝàâãàäåæçèçé�êë�ìéí�îêïð�ñêïðéïòó�ôêõöé÷òèçøê÷�ùêèï��+::/-,;2&�5/�;20/-)"5;/2�)";25";2%,�]6�5a%�(ud�8/-9%-.t�i/)̀ %2."5;/2�̂/"-,y�5a%�"]/j%̄2")%,�%)̀ '/6%-�a".�:/)̀ ';%,�p;5a�5a%�(ud�r;."];';56�"2,�h";,�b");'6�$%"j%�̂%2%0;5.���¥�¢��¦����� ������� ��	
�� ���©	��� ©���¥�p;5a�-%.̀%:5�5/�"''�/0������%)̀ '/6%%.#r"5%�d;&2%,� 6̂� |}~�����������������~������}�������������������~�������������������_%'%̀a/2%�(3)]%-� (")%�"2,�_;5'%��������������=>?@�E>MDAK>HB�HKAAEBAM�?EHB>MBF�PI�RAEPB�QSU�FEMK E?EP@�K>F�NKEF�GKOE?@�?BKJB� B>BGEPM�E>MDAK>HB�NI?EHEBM�K>F�QSU�?EHB>MBF�E>MDAK>HB�KLB>PM�IG�P!IMB�E>MDAK>HB�HKAAEBAM�KAB�KDP!IAE"BF�PI�EMMDB�#IAO�$%Y&'(W&W�)*�+,�*-��.,�/�,���,���01��+�2�,34�5����3��+���23��6�,78�9ù:;<=>;�?;@:@AB

ôCDEFGFôHEC�IG�FìæJDHìôC�ôIKCDHLC�MNO�9FæHùFPFEî�Hì9�QHF9�GHRFPî�PCHKC�ùCìCGFEæ�PHñ

STUVWXYV�ZV[U[\]

_̂̀ab̀cdefgb�hfì�jgklcmgǹ�oepqmgr
stu�v�swwxyzs{|w�}}y~x��x�����s��x������������ ���������������������{��������������������������� ��s¡������������������������ ¢�}�������£¤��¤���£ �£¤��¤����¥¥ ��¤��¤���£¦§̈©ª«¬©ª§ ®̄°±²³́�µ±̄¶·̧�¹±̄·º�»¼·°½¶̄¾·�¿ºº̄°·³



����������	
����������	���	����	��������		��	�������	� ��	!"#$%	� &	���'#(�)&	)(##�&#	�*&���!�&*	��	�"+	,	"�	� ��	!"#$	��	)&#��!����	� (�	��	��	���'#���	� &	-'���&��	#&!&#&�)&*	��	�"+	.(	!"#	*��(-�/���	(�*0"#	1(�*	2($�/�	3&(4&	-&�&!���	'�*&#	� &	567	8��(-�/���	(�*	1(�*	2($�/�	3&(4&	�&�&!���	3(9:	; &	���'#(�)&	)(##�&#	"#	���	/�)&��&*	(�&��	9�//	�&�*	� ��	<&#��!�)(�&	"!	=��'#(�)&	<"4&#(�&	><&#��!�)(�&?	�"	� &	&�����	/���&*	(�	� &	)&#��!�)(�&	 "/*&#	��	�"+	@:		; &	���'#(�)&	)(##�&#	$'��	�"��!�	� &	(-"4&	)&#��!�)(�&	 "/*&#	(�*	� &	A"#B&#�C	<"$D&��(��"�	�"(#*	9�� ��	.E	*(��	=2	(	D"/�)�	��	)(�)&//&*	*'&	�"	�"�D(�$&��	"!	D#&$�'$�	"#	9�� ��	,E	*(��	=2	� &#&	(#&	#&(�"��	"� &#	� (�	�"�D(�$&��	"!	D#&$�'$�	� (�	)(�)&/	� &	D"/�)�	"#	&/�$��(�&	� &	���'#&*	!#"$	)"4&#(�&	��*�)(�&*	"�	� ��	<&#��!�)(�&:	>; &�&	�"��)&�	$(�	-&	�&��	-�	#&�'/(#	$(�/:?	F� &#9��&%	� ��	<&#��!�)(�&	��	4(/�*	!"#	"�&	�&(#	(!�&#	� ��	!"#$	��	(DD#"4&*	-�	� &	���'#(�)&	)(##�&#	"#	���	/�)&��&*	(�&��%	"#	'���/	� &	D"/�)�	&+D�#(��"�	*(�&	/���&*	��	�"+	,)%	9 �) &4&#	��	&(#/�&#:		; ��	<&#��!�)(�&	��	���'&*	(�	(	$(��&#	"!	��!"#$(��"�	"�/�	(�*	)"�!&#�	�"	#�� ��	'D"�	� &	)&#��!�)(�&	 "/*&#:	; ��	<&#��!�)(�&	*"&�	�"�	($&�*%	&+�&�*	"#	(/�&#	� &	)"4&#(�&	(!!"#*&*	-�	� &	D"/�)�	/���&*%	�"#	*"&�	��	)"�!&#	(��	#�� ��	"#	#&�D"���-�/���&�	-&�"�*	� "�&	)"��(��&*	��	� &	#&!&#&�)&*	D"/�)�:		; ��	<&#��!�)(�&	$(�	-&	'�&*	(�	&4�*&�)&	"!	(	567	*��(-�/���	(�*0"#	1(�*	2($�/�	3&(4&	-&�&!���	)"��#()�	"!	���'#(�)&	"�/�	9 �/&	� &	'�*&#/����	D"/�)�	��	��	&!!&)�:		G�H��H	I��HJ	KL��	�MH	����H�������	��	�MH	����N����O	���P��	G���	�����O	QH�RH	NH�H����	L����O	�������H�	��	�M��	����S	��	�MH	N���H��	������H�	��	NH	���H�	��	�	LH����S	���H��H	��	��������	���H�	NO	�	�H��������H	M���H�S	�MH	N���H��	���	L��R��H	�M��	�H��������H	M���H�	T��M	�	�HT	UH��������H	��	
������H	U�RH��VH	���	IWX	����N����O	���P��	G���	�����O	QH�RH	�H�H����	��	��MH�	��M���YH�	L����	�M��	�MH	N���H��	��	���L�O��V	T��M	�MH	��������O	��RH��VH	�HZ��H�H���	��	�MH	IWX	����N����O	���	G���	�����O	QH�RH	�H�H����	Q�T�IWX	�
X��
Q
[W	�I�	G�
�	��\
QW	Q]�̂ ]	�]I]�
[X	Q�_		�̀���	XN��	a		>(?		; &	 &(*	"!	(	��(�&	"#	$'��)�D(/	*&D(#�$&��%	-"(#*%	)"$$����"�	"#	"!!�)&	('� "#�b&*	"#	#&c'�#&*	-�	/(9	�"	���'&	(��	D&#$��	!"#	"#	��	)"��&)��"�	9�� 	(��	9"#B	��4"/4���	� &	&$D/"�$&��	"!	&$D/"�&&�	��	&$D/"�$&��	(�	*&!��&*	��	� ��	(#��)/&%	(�*	�"�	9�� ��(�*���	(��	�&�&#(/	"#	�D&)�(/	��(�'�&	#&c'�#���	"#	('� "#�b���	� &	���'&	"!	�') 	D&#$���%	� (//	�"�	���'&	�') 	D&#$��	'�/&��	D#""!	*'/�	�'-�)#�-&*	-�	(�	���'#(�)&	)(##�&#	��	D#"*')&*	��	(	!"#$	�(���!()�"#�	�"	� &	) (�#%	� (�	� &	D(�$&��	"!	*��(-�/���	-&�&!���	(�*	(!�&#	d(�'(#�	!�#��%	�9"	� "'�(�*	(�*	�9&���e"�&%	� &	D(�$&��	"!	!($�/�	/&(4&	-&�&!���	!"#	(//	&$D/"�&&�	 (�	-&&�	�&)'#&*	(�	D#"4�*&*	-�	� ��	(#��)/&:	5"� ���	 &#&��%	 "9&4&#%	� (//	-&	)"���#'&*	(�	)#&(����	(��	/�(-�/���	"�	� &	D(#�	"!	�') 	��(�&	"#	$'��)�D(/	*&D(#�$&��%	-"(#*%	)"$$����"�	"#	"!!�)&	�"	D(�	(��	*��(-�/���	-&�&!���	�"	(��	�') 	&$D/"�&&	�!	�"	&$D/"�&*:				>-?	; &	 &(*	"!	(	��(�&	"#	$'��)�D(/	*&D(#�$&��%	-"(#*%	)"$$����"�	"#	"!!�)&	('� "#�b&*	"#	#&c'�#&*	-�	/(9	�"	&��&#	���"	(��	)"��#()�	!"#	"#	��	)"��&)��"�	9�� 	(��	9"#B	��4"/4���	� &	&$D/"�$&��	"!	&$D/"�&&�	��	&$D/"�$&��	(�	*&!��&*	��	� ��	(#��)/&	(�*	�"�9�� ��(�*���	(��	�&�&#(/	"#	�D&)�(/	��(�'�&	#&c'�#���	"#	('� "#�b���	(��	�') 	)"��#()�%	� (//	�"�	&��&#	���"	(��	�') 	)"��#()�	'�/&��	D#""!	*'/�	�'-�)#�-&*	-�	(�	���'#(�)&	)(##�&#	��	D#"*')&*	��	(	!"#$	�(���!()�"#�	�"	� &	) (�#%	� (�	� &	D(�$&��	"!	*��(-�/���	-&�&!���	(�*	(!�&#	d(�'(#�	!�#��%	�9"	� "'�(�*	&�� �&&�%	� &	D(�$&��	"!	!($�/�	/&(4&	-&�&!���	!"#	(//	&$D/"�&&�	 (�	-&&�	�&)'#&*	(�	D#"4�*&*	-�	� ��	(#��)/&:		
��������	f�����g	hHRH��H	



























CONSTRUCTION
ENTRANCE

SILT FENCE, TYP.

TEMPORARY STOCKPILE

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
///

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//

///
///

////
///////////////////////////

/ / / / / / / / / / / / /

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

///
///

///
///

///
////////////////////////////////////////////////////

/ / / / / /

/ / / /

REMOVE EXISTING TREE

REMOVE EXISTING
REMAINS OF STEPS

REMOVE EXISTING
STONE PATIO

REMOVE EXISTING
STONE WALK

REMOVE EXISTING
ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

REMOVE EXISTING
BUILDING IN ENTIRETY

EXISTING TREE SHALL REMAIN
AND BE PROTECTED, TYP.

REMOVE EXISTING
STONE CURB

REMOVE EXISTING
CONCRETE WALK

REMOVE EXISTING
STEPS, TYP.

100-FT WATERCOURSE BUFFER

EXISTING WATERCOURSE

DRAWN BY / CHECKED BY:

SHEET      OF 7

TITLE:

SCALE:

PROJECT NUMBER: 1008230301

PROJECT:

NB / VS

DATE: 08/25/2023

IT IS A VIOLATION OF THE STATE EDUCATION
LAW SECTION 7209 (2) FOR ANY PERSON TO
ALTER AN ITEM IN ANY WAY UNLESS SUCH A
PERSON IS ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION
OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
AND THE ENGINEER STAMPS SUCH CHANGES.

DRAWING NUMBER:

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

TOMMY MAENE
NY STATE LIC. No. 094606

Hartland Engineering, DPC
152 Edgar Street, 2nd Floor

Weehawken, NJ 07086
347.899.4710

HARTLAND
GEOTECHNICAL + SITE/CIVIL ENGINEERING

260 S HEALY AVENUE
GREENBURGH, NY 10583

WESTCHESTER COUNTY NEW YORK

OWNER
VIVIAN LEE & WARREN CHENG
10 WEST 66TH STREET, 18D
NEW YORK, NY, 10023

PREPARED BY
HARTLAND ENGINEERING, DPC
152 EDGAR STREET, 2ND FLOOR
WEEHAWKEN, NJ, 07086
201-446-5533
INFO@HARTLANDENGINEERING.COM

APPLICANT
WELCOME HOMES N.Y. BUILDING COMPANY LLC
41 MADISON AVENUE, SUITE 3300
NEW YORK, NY, 10010
212-920-5150

PARCEL DATA
MUNICIPALITY: GREENBURGH
COUNTY: WESTCHESTER COUNTY
STATE: NEW YORK
PARCEL ID: BLOCK 224, LOT 42
TOTAL AREA: 23,339 SF (0.536 AC)
ZONE: R-20
PROPOSED USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
NUMBER OF LOTS: 1
WATER SUPPLY METHOD: PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY
SEWER DISPOSAL METHOD: PUBLIC SEWER DISPOSAL SYSTEM

1 PLANNING BOARD 1 11-07-23

200

SCALE IN FEET

5 1020

SITE REMOVALS &
EROSION AND SEDIMENT
CONTROL PLAN

GENERAL NOTES:
1. EXISTING INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON TAKEN FROM THE

"TOPOGRAPHIC/BOUNDARY SURVEY" FOR #260 HEALY AVENUE, PREPARED BY
HEIDECKER LAND SURVEYING, PLLC, AND DATED JULY 21, 2023.

2. AS PER THE ABOVE REFERENCED SURVEY, ELEVATIONS REFER TO THE NORTH
AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD 88) AND ARE BASED UPON GPS
OBSERVATIONS PERFORMED BY HEIDECKER LAND SURVEYING, PLLC.

3. ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE AND BASED UPON
SURFACE EVIDENCE OBSERVED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF THE FIELD SURVEY.
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL "CALL BEFORE YOU
DIG" AT 811 TO HAVE ALL UTILITY LOCATIONS FIELD VERIFIED PRIOR TO ANY
EXCAVATION,

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE ALL PERMITS PRIOR TO ANY WORK PERFORMED

GENERAL CONTRACTOR NOTES:
1. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING ALL WORK CONFORMS WITH

ALL FEDERAL, STATE, COUNTY OR LOCAL CODES HAVING JURISDICTION OVER
SUCH WORK.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE OSHA REGULATIONS
AND SAFETY PROCEDURES TO ENSURE PERSONNEL HEALTH AND SAFETY. THE
CONTRACTOR MUST MAINTAIN A SAFE AND CLEAN WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND
SHALL ENSURE PROPER PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT IS WORN AT ALL
TIMES. IN AREAS WHERE PEDESTRIAN AND/OR VEHICULAR TRAFFIC MAY BE
AFFECTED BY THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CORDON OFF THE WORK
AREA.

3. PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE SITE AND
SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE OF ANY UTILITIES, STRUCTURES
OR ANY OTHER ELEMENTS WHICH MAY IMPEDE WORK. UTILITY AND/OR
STRUCTURE RELOCATIONS, IF NECESSARY, SHALL BE COORDINATED THROUGH
THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE AT NO ADDITIONAL COST.

4. IT IS THE CONTRACTORS' RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY, COORDINATE AND STAGE
OR SEQUENCE HIS WORK WITH ANY OTHER PLANNED OR ONGOING
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AT THE SITE.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ANY STAGE WORK, LAY DOWN, AND
STORAGE AREA LOCATIONS AND ACCESS WITH OWNER, PRIOR TO START OF
WORK.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL UTILITY DISCONNECTIONS
AND REMOVALS, AS PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF EACH UTILITY PROVIDER.

C101.00
1

http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1617/3183/20SCALE.dwg


47.7-FT

25.0-FT

55.4-FT

31.0-FT

69.2-FT

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

6" BELGIAN BLOCK CURB

20.0-FT

20.1-FT26.0-FT

8.0-FT

25.0-FT

28.0-FT

206 S HEALY AVE
SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

FFE: 313.00
GFE: 312.00
BFE: 303.00

64.4-FT

DECK

ID#1
(1) OV

ID#2
(1) AC

ID#3
(1) MA

ID#4
(1) AR

100-FT WATERCOURSE BUFFER

EXISTING WATERCOURSE

DRAWN BY / CHECKED BY:

SHEET      OF 7

TITLE:

SCALE:

PROJECT NUMBER: 1008230301

PROJECT:

NB / VS

DATE: 08/25/2023

IT IS A VIOLATION OF THE STATE EDUCATION
LAW SECTION 7209 (2) FOR ANY PERSON TO
ALTER AN ITEM IN ANY WAY UNLESS SUCH A
PERSON IS ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION
OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
AND THE ENGINEER STAMPS SUCH CHANGES.

DRAWING NUMBER:

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

TOMMY MAENE
NY STATE LIC. No. 094606

Hartland Engineering, DPC
152 Edgar Street, 2nd Floor

Weehawken, NJ 07086
347.899.4710

HARTLAND
GEOTECHNICAL + SITE/CIVIL ENGINEERING

260 S HEALY AVENUE
GREENBURGH, NY 10583

WESTCHESTER COUNTY NEW YORK

OWNER
VIVIAN LEE & WARREN CHENG
10 WEST 66TH STREET, 18D
NEW YORK, NY, 10023

PREPARED BY
HARTLAND ENGINEERING, DPC
152 EDGAR STREET, 2ND FLOOR
WEEHAWKEN, NJ, 07086
201-446-5533
INFO@HARTLANDENGINEERING.COM

APPLICANT
WELCOME HOMES N.Y. BUILDING COMPANY LLC
41 MADISON AVENUE, SUITE 3300
NEW YORK, NY, 10010
212-920-5150

PARCEL DATA
MUNICIPALITY: GREENBURGH
COUNTY: WESTCHESTER COUNTY
STATE: NEW YORK
PARCEL ID: BLOCK 224, LOT 42
TOTAL AREA: 23,339 SF (0.536 AC)
ZONE: R-20
PROPOSED USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
NUMBER OF LOTS: 1
WATER SUPPLY METHOD: PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY
SEWER DISPOSAL METHOD: PUBLIC SEWER DISPOSAL SYSTEM

1 PLANNING BOARD 1 11-07-23

100

SCALE IN FEET

2 410

SITE PLAN

C201.00
2

GENERAL NOTES:
1. EXISTING INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON TAKEN FROM THE

"TOPOGRAPHIC/BOUNDARY SURVEY" FOR #260 HEALY AVENUE, PREPARED BY
HEIDECKER LAND SURVEYING, PLLC, AND DATED JULY 21, 2023.

2. AS PER THE ABOVE REFERENCED SURVEY, ELEVATIONS REFER TO THE NORTH
AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD 88) AND ARE BASED UPON GPS
OBSERVATIONS PERFORMED BY HEIDECKER LAND SURVEYING, PLLC.

3. ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE AND BASED UPON
SURFACE EVIDENCE OBSERVED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF THE FIELD SURVEY.
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL "CALL BEFORE YOU
DIG" AT 811 TO HAVE ALL UTILITY LOCATIONS FIELD VERIFIED PRIOR TO ANY
EXCAVATION.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE ALL PERMITS PRIOR TO ANY WORK PERFORMED

GENERAL CONTRACTOR NOTES:
1. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING ALL WORK CONFORMS WITH

ALL FEDERAL, STATE, COUNTY OR LOCAL CODES HAVING JURISDICTION OVER
SUCH WORK.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE OSHA REGULATIONS
AND SAFETY PROCEDURES TO ENSURE PERSONNEL HEALTH AND SAFETY. THE
CONTRACTOR MUST MAINTAIN A SAFE AND CLEAN WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND
SHALL ENSURE PROPER PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT IS WORN AT ALL
TIMES. IN AREAS WHERE PEDESTRIAN AND/OR VEHICULAR TRAFFIC MAY BE
AFFECTED BY THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CORDON OFF THE WORK
AREA.

3. PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE SITE AND
SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE OF ANY UTILITIES, STRUCTURES
OR ANY OTHER ELEMENTS WHICH MAY IMPEDE WORK. UTILITY AND/OR
STRUCTURE RELOCATIONS, IF NECESSARY, SHALL BE COORDINATED THROUGH
THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE AT NO ADDITIONAL COST.

4. IT IS THE CONTRACTORS' RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY, COORDINATE AND STAGE
OR SEQUENCE HIS WORK WITH ANY OTHER PLANNED OR ONGOING
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AT THE SITE.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ANY STAGE WORK, LAY DOWN, AND
STORAGE AREA LOCATIONS AND ACCESS WITH OWNER, PRIOR TO START OF
WORK.

AVERAGE GRADE CALCULATION:
1. THE AVERAGE GRADE AROUND THE PROPOSED BUILDING WAS CALCULATED TO

BE 311.3-FT. THE FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION IS 313.00, WHICH EXPOSES AS
AVERAGE OF 1.7-FT OF FOUNDATION WALL FOR THE ENTIRE BUILDING.

http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg


206 S HEALY AVE
SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

FFE: 313.00
GFE: 312.00
BFE: 303.00

DECK

312.00

311.45

(304.80)

TC 304.35
BC(303.85)

304.95

TC315.05
BC304.55

309.50

TC311.75
BC311.25

TC309.05
BC308.55

TC312.50
BC312.00

311.50

309.35

311.00

STORMWATER INFILTRATION SYSTEM
COMPRISED OF (6) STORMTECH MC-3500
CHAMBERS WITH END CAPS AT EACH END
RETENTION VOLUME = 1,173-CF
TOP EL = 304.50
BOTTOM EL = 300.75

TRENCH DRAIN
RIM = 304.55
INV = 302.55

INV = 303.52

INV = 303.52

PRECAST CONCRETE MANHOLE
RIM = 307.00
INV = 303.65

12-LF OF 6" SCH. 40
PVC @ 1.0% MIN.

6" SCH. 40 PVC UNDERDRAIN @ 1.0%, MIN.
CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE PIPE
ROUTING WITH DOWNSPOUTS

313.00

FOUNDATION DRAIN DISCHARGE
INV = 302.00

42-LF OF 6" SCH.
40 PVC @ 1.0%

CLEANOUT

100-FT WATERCOURSE BUFFER

EXISTING WATERCOURSE

DRAWN BY / CHECKED BY:

SHEET      OF 7

TITLE:

SCALE:

PROJECT NUMBER: 1008230301

PROJECT:

NB / VS

DATE: 08/25/2023

IT IS A VIOLATION OF THE STATE EDUCATION
LAW SECTION 7209 (2) FOR ANY PERSON TO
ALTER AN ITEM IN ANY WAY UNLESS SUCH A
PERSON IS ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION
OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
AND THE ENGINEER STAMPS SUCH CHANGES.

DRAWING NUMBER:

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

TOMMY MAENE
NY STATE LIC. No. 094606

Hartland Engineering, DPC
152 Edgar Street, 2nd Floor

Weehawken, NJ 07086
347.899.4710

HARTLAND
GEOTECHNICAL + SITE/CIVIL ENGINEERING

260 S HEALY AVENUE
GREENBURGH, NY 10583

WESTCHESTER COUNTY NEW YORK

OWNER
VIVIAN LEE & WARREN CHENG
10 WEST 66TH STREET, 18D
NEW YORK, NY, 10023

PREPARED BY
HARTLAND ENGINEERING, DPC
152 EDGAR STREET, 2ND FLOOR
WEEHAWKEN, NJ, 07086
201-446-5533
INFO@HARTLANDENGINEERING.COM

APPLICANT
WELCOME HOMES N.Y. BUILDING COMPANY LLC
41 MADISON AVENUE, SUITE 3300
NEW YORK, NY, 10010
212-920-5150

PARCEL DATA
MUNICIPALITY: GREENBURGH
COUNTY: WESTCHESTER COUNTY
STATE: NEW YORK
PARCEL ID: BLOCK 224, LOT 42
TOTAL AREA: 23,339 SF (0.536 AC)
ZONE: R-20
PROPOSED USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
NUMBER OF LOTS: 1
WATER SUPPLY METHOD: PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY
SEWER DISPOSAL METHOD: PUBLIC SEWER DISPOSAL SYSTEM

1 PLANNING BOARD 1 11-07-23

100

SCALE IN FEET

2 410

SITE GRADING AND
DRAINAGE PLAN

C301.00
4

GENERAL NOTES:
1. EXISTING INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON TAKEN FROM THE

"TOPOGRAPHIC/BOUNDARY SURVEY" FOR #260 HEALY AVENUE, PREPARED BY
HEIDECKER LAND SURVEYING, PLLC, AND DATED JULY 21, 2023.

2. AS PER THE ABOVE REFERENCED SURVEY, ELEVATIONS REFER TO THE NORTH
AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD 88) AND ARE BASED UPON GPS
OBSERVATIONS PERFORMED BY HEIDECKER LAND SURVEYING, PLLC.

3. ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE AND BASED UPON
SURFACE EVIDENCE OBSERVED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF THE FIELD SURVEY.
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL "CALL BEFORE YOU
DIG" AT 811 TO HAVE ALL UTILITY LOCATIONS FIELD VERIFIED PRIOR TO ANY
EXCAVATION,

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE ALL PERMITS PRIOR TO ANY WORK PERFORMED

GENERAL CONTRACTOR NOTES:
1. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING ALL WORK CONFORMS WITH

ALL FEDERAL, STATE, COUNTY OR LOCAL CODES HAVING JURISDICTION OVER
SUCH WORK.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE OSHA REGULATIONS
AND SAFETY PROCEDURES TO ENSURE PERSONNEL HEALTH AND SAFETY. THE
CONTRACTOR MUST MAINTAIN A SAFE AND CLEAN WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND
SHALL ENSURE PROPER PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT IS WORN AT ALL
TIMES. IN AREAS WHERE PEDESTRIAN AND/OR VEHICULAR TRAFFIC MAY BE
AFFECTED BY THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CORDON OFF THE WORK
AREA.

3. PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE SITE AND
SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE OF ANY UTILITIES, STRUCTURES
OR ANY OTHER ELEMENTS WHICH MAY IMPEDE WORK. UTILITY AND/OR
STRUCTURE RELOCATIONS, IF NECESSARY, SHALL BE COORDINATED THROUGH
THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE AT NO ADDITIONAL COST.

4. IT IS THE CONTRACTORS' RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY, COORDINATE AND STAGE
OR SEQUENCE HIS WORK WITH ANY OTHER PLANNED OR ONGOING
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AT THE SITE.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ANY STAGE WORK, LAY DOWN, AND
STORAGE AREA LOCATIONS AND ACCESS WITH OWNER, PRIOR TO START OF
WORK.

http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg


G

W

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

G G G

PROPOSED 1" TYPE 'K' COPPER
WATER SERVICE LINE

PROPOSED 4" SCH. 40 PVC
SEWER SERVICE @ 2.0% MIN.

CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER
MAIN (SEE DETAIL). CONTRACTOR SHALL
CONFIRM SEWER MAIN INVERT ELEVATION
PRIOR TO ANY WORK BEING PERFORMED.

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH
PURVEYOR FOR WATER SERVICE TAP

REFER TO DRAWING C301 FOR
MORE INFORMATION REGARDING
SITE GRADING AND DRAINAGE

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
PROPOSED BELOW GROUND

500 GAL PROPANE TANK BY
OTHERS (EXACT LOCATION TO

BE DETERMINED BY INSTALLER)

10-FT
(MIN)

10-FT
(MIN)

WATER VALVE

CLEANOUT

INV OUT = 309.00

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE
WITH LOCAL ELECTRICAL COMPANY
FOR CONNECTION

206 S HEALY AVE
SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

FFE: 313.00
GFE: 312.00
BFE: 303.00

DECK

100-FT WATERCOURSE BUFFER

EXISTING WATERCOURSE

DRAWN BY / CHECKED BY:

SHEET      OF 7

TITLE:

SCALE:

PROJECT NUMBER: 1008230301

PROJECT:

NB / VS

DATE: 08/25/2023

IT IS A VIOLATION OF THE STATE EDUCATION
LAW SECTION 7209 (2) FOR ANY PERSON TO
ALTER AN ITEM IN ANY WAY UNLESS SUCH A
PERSON IS ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION
OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
AND THE ENGINEER STAMPS SUCH CHANGES.

DRAWING NUMBER:

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

TOMMY MAENE
NY STATE LIC. No. 094606

Hartland Engineering, DPC
152 Edgar Street, 2nd Floor

Weehawken, NJ 07086
347.899.4710

HARTLAND
GEOTECHNICAL + SITE/CIVIL ENGINEERING

260 S HEALY AVENUE
GREENBURGH, NY 10583

WESTCHESTER COUNTY NEW YORK

OWNER
VIVIAN LEE & WARREN CHENG
10 WEST 66TH STREET, 18D
NEW YORK, NY, 10023

PREPARED BY
HARTLAND ENGINEERING, DPC
152 EDGAR STREET, 2ND FLOOR
WEEHAWKEN, NJ, 07086
201-446-5533
INFO@HARTLANDENGINEERING.COM

APPLICANT
WELCOME HOMES N.Y. BUILDING COMPANY LLC
41 MADISON AVENUE, SUITE 3300
NEW YORK, NY, 10010
212-920-5150

PARCEL DATA
MUNICIPALITY: GREENBURGH
COUNTY: WESTCHESTER COUNTY
STATE: NEW YORK
PARCEL ID: BLOCK 224, LOT 42
TOTAL AREA: 23,339 SF (0.536 AC)
ZONE: R-20
PROPOSED USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
NUMBER OF LOTS: 1
WATER SUPPLY METHOD: PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY
SEWER DISPOSAL METHOD: PUBLIC SEWER DISPOSAL SYSTEM

1 PLANNING BOARD 1 11-07-23

100

SCALE IN FEET

2 410

SITE UTILITY PLAN

C401.00
5

GENERAL NOTES:
1. EXISTING INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON TAKEN FROM THE

"TOPOGRAPHIC/BOUNDARY SURVEY" FOR #260 HEALY AVENUE, PREPARED BY
HEIDECKER LAND SURVEYING, PLLC, AND DATED JULY 21, 2023.

2. AS PER THE ABOVE REFERENCED SURVEY, ELEVATIONS REFER TO THE NORTH
AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD 88) AND ARE BASED UPON GPS
OBSERVATIONS PERFORMED BY HEIDECKER LAND SURVEYING, PLLC.

3. ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE AND BASED UPON
SURFACE EVIDENCE OBSERVED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF THE FIELD SURVEY.
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL "CALL BEFORE YOU
DIG" AT 811 TO HAVE ALL UTILITY LOCATIONS FIELD VERIFIED PRIOR TO ANY
EXCAVATION,

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE ALL PERMITS PRIOR TO ANY WORK PERFORMED

GENERAL CONTRACTOR NOTES:
1. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING ALL WORK CONFORMS WITH

ALL FEDERAL, STATE, COUNTY OR LOCAL CODES HAVING JURISDICTION OVER
SUCH WORK.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE OSHA REGULATIONS
AND SAFETY PROCEDURES TO ENSURE PERSONNEL HEALTH AND SAFETY. THE
CONTRACTOR MUST MAINTAIN A SAFE AND CLEAN WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND
SHALL ENSURE PROPER PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT IS WORN AT ALL
TIMES. IN AREAS WHERE PEDESTRIAN AND/OR VEHICULAR TRAFFIC MAY BE
AFFECTED BY THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CORDON OFF THE WORK
AREA.

3. PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE SITE AND
SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE OF ANY UTILITIES, STRUCTURES
OR ANY OTHER ELEMENTS WHICH MAY IMPEDE WORK. UTILITY AND/OR
STRUCTURE RELOCATIONS, IF NECESSARY, SHALL BE COORDINATED THROUGH
THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE AT NO ADDITIONAL COST.

4. IT IS THE CONTRACTORS' RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY, COORDINATE AND STAGE
OR SEQUENCE HIS WORK WITH ANY OTHER PLANNED OR ONGOING
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AT THE SITE.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ANY STAGE WORK, LAY DOWN, AND
STORAGE AREA LOCATIONS AND ACCESS WITH OWNER, PRIOR TO START OF
WORK.

http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg


DRAWN BY / CHECKED BY:

SHEET      OF 7

TITLE:

SCALE:

PROJECT NUMBER: 1008230301

PROJECT:

NB / VS

DATE: 08/25/2023

IT IS A VIOLATION OF THE STATE EDUCATION
LAW SECTION 7209 (2) FOR ANY PERSON TO
ALTER AN ITEM IN ANY WAY UNLESS SUCH A
PERSON IS ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION
OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
AND THE ENGINEER STAMPS SUCH CHANGES.

DRAWING NUMBER:

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

TOMMY MAENE
NY STATE LIC. No. 094606

Hartland Engineering, DPC
152 Edgar Street, 2nd Floor

Weehawken, NJ 07086
347.899.4710

HARTLAND
GEOTECHNICAL + SITE/CIVIL ENGINEERING

260 S HEALY AVENUE
GREENBURGH, NY 10583

WESTCHESTER COUNTY NEW YORK

1 PLANNING BOARD 1 11-07-23

SITE DETAILS

C501.00
6

STABILIZE ENTIRE PILE WITH
VEGETATION OR COVER

SILT FENCE

SLOPE OR LESS2
1

NOTES:
1. AREA CHOSEN FOR SOIL STOCKPILING OPERATIONS SHALL BE DRY AND STABLE.
2. MAXIMUM SLOPE OF STOCKPILE SHALL BE 2:1 HORIZONTAL TO VERTICAL.
3. UPON COMPLETION OF SOIL STOCKPILING, EACH PILE SHALL BE SURROUNDED WITH SILT FENCING, THEN

STABILIZED WITH VEGETATION OR COVERED IF STOCKPILE IS TO REMAIN OVER 14 DAYS.
4. SEE DETAIL FOR INSTALLATION OF SILT FENCE.

NOT TO SCALE
TEMPORARY SOIL STOCKPILE

1' MIN.

6' MAX.

40" MIN.

18" MIN.

FENCE

GROUND SURFACE

POST

DRIP LINE

POST AND FENCE DETAIL

SIDE VIEW

NOTES:
1. THE FENCE SHALL BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 1 FOOT OUTSIDE THE DRIP LINE OF THE

TREE TO BE SAVED AND IN NO CASE CLOSER THAN 5 FEET TO THE TRUNK OF ANY TREE.
2. FENCE POSTS SHALL BE EITHER STANDARD STEEL POSTS OR WOOD POSTS WITH A

MINUMUM CROSS SECTIONAL AREA OF 3.0 SQ. IN.
3. THE FENCE MAY BE EITHER 40” HIGH SNOW FENCE, 40” PLASTIC WEB FENCING OR ANY

OTHER MATERIAL AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER/INSPECTOR.

NOT TO SCALE
TREE PROTECTION/CONSTRUCTION FENCE

1" BATTER

PAVEMENT

FINISHED GRADE

4"X4"X10" MIN. BELGIAN
BLOCK, GRANITE BLOCK,
OR APROVED EQUAL.

4,000 P.S.I. CONC. AT
28 DAYS WITH AIR
ENTRAINMENT

NOTES:
1. JOINTS SHALL BE NOT MORE THAN 1/4" WIDE FOR DRESSED BLOCK AND 3/8" WIDE FOR QUARRY

SPLIT BLOCK. THE JOINTS SHALL BE POINTED WITH 1:1 CEMENT-SAND MORTAR.
2. ALL CURBING SHALL BE PLACED ON UNDISTURBED DRY SOIL OR WELL COMPACTED SELECT FILL,

CUT TO THE PROPER GRADE. ANY EXCAVATION BELOW DESIRED GRADE DUT TO
OVER-EXCAVATION NEEDS WELL COMPACTED SELECT FILL. WET SOIL CONDITIONS SHALL BE
BACKFILLED WITH 3/4" CLEAN CRUSHED STONE. ALL SUBGRADES SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE
TOWNSHIP INSPECTOR PRIOR TO POURING.

NOT TO SCALE
BELGIAN BLOCK CURB DETAIL

12
"

18
"

4"4" 4"

10
"

6"

1"

12"

NOT TO SCALE
PAVED DRIVEWAY DETAIL

2" THICK BITUMINOUS CONCRETE
SURFACE COURSE, MIX I-5

4" THICK COMPACTED DENSE
GRADED AGGREGATE

COMPACTED APPROVED SUBGRADE

NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE MIN 1% CROSS SLOPE ON DRIVEWAY
2. MIX NUMBER IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION.
3. NO PAVEMENT WILL BE PLACED WHEN AIR TEMPERATURE IS BELOW 40 DEGREES

FAHRENHEIT.

TYPICAL SECTION

NOT TO SCALE
CONCRETE WALKWAY DETAIL

4,000 PSI AIR ENTRAINED CONCRETE W/ BROOM FINISH

4" THICK COMPACTED CLEAN STONE

COMPACTED SUB-GRADE

NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE CONTROL JOINTS 5' O.C., AND EXPANSION JOINTS 20' O.C.
2. VEHICULAR CROSSING SIDEWALK SHALL BE REINFORCED WITH WELDED FABRIC MESH OR

EQUIVALENT.

TYPICAL SECTION

1% SLOPE MIN.

4"

4"

10' MAX. C. TO C.

HEIGHT OF FILTER = 16" MIN.

8" MIN.

20" MIN.

16" MIN.

WOVEN WIRE FENCE(MIN. 14 1/2
GAUGE W/ MAX. 6" MESH SPACING)

36" MIN. LENGTH FENCE POSTS
DRIVEN MIN. 16" INTO GROUND

FLO
W

FLO
W

PERSPECTIVE VIEW

SECTION VIEW

4"

FLOW

36" MIN. FENCE POST

WOVEN WIRE FENCE(MIN. 14 1/2
GAUGE W/ MAX. 6" MESH SPACING)

WITH FILTER CLOTH

COMPACTED SOIL

EMBED FILTER CLOTH A
MIN. OF 6" IN GROUND

UNDISTURBED GROUND

NOTES:
1. WOVEN WIRE FENCE TO BE FASTENED SECURELY TO FENCE POSTS WITH WIRE TIES OR STAPLES. POSTS

SHALL BE STEEL EITHER "T" OR "U" TYPE OR HARDWOOD.
2. FILTER CLOTH TO BE TO BE FASTENED SECURELY TO WOVEN WIRE FENCE WITH TIES SPACED EVERY 24"

AT TOP AND MID SECTION. FENCE SHALL BE WOVEN WIRE, 12 1/2 GAUGE, 6” MAXIMUM MESH OPENING.
3. WHEN TWO SECTIONS OF FILTER CLOTH ADJOIN EACH OTHER THEY SHALL BE OVERLAPPED BY SIX

INCHES AND FOLDED. FILTER CLOTH SHALL BE EITHER FILTER X. MIRAFI 100X, STABILINKA T1 4ON, OR
APPROVED EQUIVALENT.

4. PREFABRICATED UNITS SHALL BE GEOFAB, ENVIROFENCE, OR APPROVED EQUIVALENT.
5. MAINTENANCE SHALL BE PERFORMED AS NEEDED AND MATERIAL REMOVED WHEN "BULGES” DEVELOP IN

THE SILT FENCE.

NOT TO SCALE
SILT FENCE

50' MIN

50' MIN

12' MIN

12' MIN
10' MIN

10' MIN

6" MIN

EXISTING
PAVEMENT

MOUNTABLE BERM
(OPTIONAL)FILTER

CLOTH
EXISTING
GROUND

EXISTING
GROUND

EXISTING
PAVEMENT

3' 5:1

PROFILE

PLAN VIEW

NOTES:
1. STONE SIZE - USE 2" STONE, OR RECLAIMED OR RECYCLED CONCRETE EQUIVALENT.
2. LENGTH – NOT LESS THAN 50 FEET (EXCEPT ON A SINGLE RESIDENCE LOT WHERE A 30 FOOT MINIMUM

LENGTH WOULD APPLY).
3. THICKNESS - NOT LESS THAN SIX (6) INCHES.
4. WIDTH – TWELVE (12) FOOT MINIMUM, BUT NOT LESS THAN THE FULL WIDTH AT POINTS WHERE INGRESS

OR EGRESS OCCURS. TWENTY-FOUR (24) FOOT IF SINGLE ENTRANCE TO SITE.
5. FILTER CLOTH – WILL BE PLACED OVER THE ENTIRE AREA PRIOR TO PLACING OF STONE.
6. SURFACE WATER - ALL SURFACE WATER FLOWING OR DIVERTED TOWARD CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES

SHALL BE PIPED ACROSS THE ENTRANCE. IF PIPING IS IMPRACTICAL, A MOUNTABLE BERM WITH 5:1
SLOPES WILL BE PERMITTED.

7. MAINTENANCE – THE ENTRANCE SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A CONDITION WHICH WILL PREVENT TRACKING
OR FLOWING OF SEDIMENT ON TO PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY, ALL SEDIMENT SPILLED, DROPPED, WASHED
OR TRACTED ON TO PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY MUST BE REMOVED IMMEDIATELY.

8. WHEN WASHING IS REQUIRED, IT SHALL BE DONE ON A AREA STABILIZED WITH STONE AND WHICH DRAINS
INTO AN APPROVED SEDIMENT TRAPPING DEVICE.

9. PERIODIC INSPECTION AND NEEDED MAINTENANCE SHALL BE PROVIDED AFTER EACH RAIN.

NOT TO SCALE
STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE



18"
MIN

6"

12"77"12"

45"

CLEAN 3/4-IN STONE, TYP.

FILTER FABRIC, TYP. (MIRAFI
140N OR APPROVED EQUAL)

STORMWATER RETENTION
SYSTEM. (STORM TECH

CHAMBERS  MC-3500 OR
APPROVED EQUAL)

PREPARED SUBGRADE
12"

CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE
GRASS AS REQUIRED

BACKFILL

6-IN (MIN)

1/8"

VARIES

6-IN (MIN) 6-IN (MIN)

6" CRUSHED
STONE

CAST-IN-PLACE
CONCRETE
3,200 PSI (MIN)

8-IN
10-IN

PREPARED
SUBGRADE

TRENCH DRAIN
FRAME AND GRATE

DRAWN BY / CHECKED BY:

SHEET      OF 7

TITLE:

SCALE:

PROJECT NUMBER: 1008230301

PROJECT:

NB / VS

DATE: 08/25/2023

IT IS A VIOLATION OF THE STATE EDUCATION
LAW SECTION 7209 (2) FOR ANY PERSON TO
ALTER AN ITEM IN ANY WAY UNLESS SUCH A
PERSON IS ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION
OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
AND THE ENGINEER STAMPS SUCH CHANGES.

DRAWING NUMBER:

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

TOMMY MAENE
NY STATE LIC. No. 094606

Hartland Engineering, DPC
152 Edgar Street, 2nd Floor

Weehawken, NJ 07086
347.899.4710

HARTLAND
GEOTECHNICAL + SITE/CIVIL ENGINEERING

260 S HEALY AVENUE
GREENBURGH, NY 10583

WESTCHESTER COUNTY NEW YORK

1 PLANNING BOARD 1 11-07-23

NOT TO SCALE
STORMWATER INFILTRATION SYSTEM

GRATE DETAIL
PLAN

FOR INVERT, SEE PLAN

APPROVED SUBGRADE

 APPROVED COMPACTED
      CRUSHED STONE

  FOUNDATION COURSE.

SECTION

NOTES:
1. REDFORCED 6 X 6 X 10 GAUGE

MESH OR TO SPECIFICATIONS
2. MINIMUM CONCRETE COMPRESSIVE

STRENGTH: 4.000 PSI @ 28DAYS
3. CATCH BASIN TO BE USED FOR

STRUCTURES CB-1, CB-2, CB-3,
CB-4, CB-5 AND CB-6.

3" PRECAST CONCRETE

FINISHED GRADE

FRAVE & GRATE
by CONNECTICUT PRECAST OR
APPROVED EQUAL

12"

12"

18"

6"

3"

8"

6"6"

3"

3"

3"12"3"

SECTION

NOT TO SCALE
CATCH BASIN

SAND BEDDING

SURFACE FINISH (REFER TO
PLAN FOR MORE INFORMATION)

6" THICK COMPACTED
AGGREGATE BASE

APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF EXCAVATION
PER CONTRACTOR'S MEANS/METHODS
AND OSHA REQUIREMENTS

FILL OR CRUSHED STONE

REFER TO PLAN FOR PIPE
DIAMETER, TYPE, INVERT

UNDISTURBED SOIL OR
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

REFER TO TRENCH
WIDTH DETAIL

1/4 OF PIPE
DIAMETER

6"

NOT TO SCALE
TRENCH EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL

WYE FITHING

90° ELBOW      LEADER PIPE
SOLID NON-PERFORATED

VENTED CAP

CAULKING

ADAPTER

DOWNSPOUT

SPLASH BLOCK

     SUB-BASE

10" - 14"

NOT TO SCALE
DOWNSPOUT DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE
SANITARY SEWER LATERAL

PLAN

MINIMUM SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT

1/8 BEND

6"MIN.6"PVC SCH 40 PIPE

NEW 4" SANITARY SEWER SERVICE

SECTION

ADAPTOR COUPLING TO C.I. SOIL PIPE

FOUNDATION CUSHION

6" SADDLE TEE WITH RUBBER SEAL
(OPENING TO BE DRILLED IN PIPE)

5' 
MI

N

PL

PAVEMENT

PROPOSED ADJUSTABLE VALVE BOX

PROPOSED CURB STOP

PROPOSED COUPLING

PROPOSED WATER
SERVICE (REFER TO UTILITY PLAN)

PROVIDE 2 OU, FT, OF
SCREENED GRAVEL

PROPOSED TYPE K
COPPER WATER
SERVICE

CORPORATION STOP

EXISTING WATER MAIN

4'-0"

NOT TO SCALE
WATER CONNECTION DETAIL

SITE DETAILS

C502.00
7

TRENCH DRAIN



APPROXIMATE LIMIT OF DISTURBANCE
(±9,918-SF)

APPROXIMATE FOOTPRINT OF BUILDING
(±2,530-SF)

100-FT WATERCOURSE BUFFER

EXISTING WATERCOURSE

DRAWN BY / CHECKED BY:

SHEET      OF 7

TITLE:

SCALE:

PROJECT NUMBER: 1008230301

PROJECT:

NB / VS

DATE: 08/25/2023

IT IS A VIOLATION OF THE STATE EDUCATION
LAW SECTION 7209 (2) FOR ANY PERSON TO
ALTER AN ITEM IN ANY WAY UNLESS SUCH A
PERSON IS ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION
OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
AND THE ENGINEER STAMPS SUCH CHANGES.

DRAWING NUMBER:

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

TOMMY MAENE
NY STATE LIC. No. 094606

Hartland Engineering, DPC
152 Edgar Street, 2nd Floor

Weehawken, NJ 07086
347.899.4710

HARTLAND
GEOTECHNICAL + SITE/CIVIL ENGINEERING

260 S HEALY AVENUE
GREENBURGH, NY 10583

WESTCHESTER COUNTY NEW YORK

OWNER
VIVIAN LEE & WARREN CHENG
10 WEST 66TH STREET, 18D
NEW YORK, NY, 10023

PREPARED BY
HARTLAND ENGINEERING, DPC
152 EDGAR STREET, 2ND FLOOR
WEEHAWKEN, NJ, 07086
201-446-5533
INFO@HARTLANDENGINEERING.COM

APPLICANT
WELCOME HOMES N.Y. BUILDING COMPANY LLC
41 MADISON AVENUE, SUITE 3300
NEW YORK, NY, 10010
212-920-5150

PARCEL DATA
MUNICIPALITY: GREENBURGH
COUNTY: WESTCHESTER COUNTY
STATE: NEW YORK
PARCEL ID: BLOCK 224, LOT 42
TOTAL AREA: 23,339 SF (0.536 AC)
ZONE: R-20
PROPOSED USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
NUMBER OF LOTS: 1
WATER SUPPLY METHOD: PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY
SEWER DISPOSAL METHOD: PUBLIC SEWER DISPOSAL SYSTEM

1 PLANNING BOARD 1 11-07-23

100

SCALE IN FEET

2 410

STEEP SLOPES PLAN

C202.00
3

GENERAL NOTES:
1. EXISTING INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON TAKEN FROM THE

"TOPOGRAPHIC/BOUNDARY SURVEY" FOR #260 HEALY AVENUE, PREPARED BY
HEIDECKER LAND SURVEYING, PLLC, AND DATED JULY 21, 2023.

2. AS PER THE ABOVE REFERENCED SURVEY, ELEVATIONS REFER TO THE NORTH
AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD 88) AND ARE BASED UPON GPS
OBSERVATIONS PERFORMED BY HEIDECKER LAND SURVEYING, PLLC.

3. ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE AND BASED UPON
SURFACE EVIDENCE OBSERVED IN THE FIELD AT THE TIME OF THE FIELD SURVEY.
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL "CALL BEFORE YOU
DIG" AT 811 TO HAVE ALL UTILITY LOCATIONS FIELD VERIFIED PRIOR TO ANY
EXCAVATION.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE ALL PERMITS PRIOR TO ANY WORK PERFORMED

GENERAL CONTRACTOR NOTES:
1. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING ALL WORK CONFORMS WITH

ALL FEDERAL, STATE, COUNTY OR LOCAL CODES HAVING JURISDICTION OVER
SUCH WORK.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE OSHA REGULATIONS
AND SAFETY PROCEDURES TO ENSURE PERSONNEL HEALTH AND SAFETY. THE
CONTRACTOR MUST MAINTAIN A SAFE AND CLEAN WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND
SHALL ENSURE PROPER PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT IS WORN AT ALL
TIMES. IN AREAS WHERE PEDESTRIAN AND/OR VEHICULAR TRAFFIC MAY BE
AFFECTED BY THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CORDON OFF THE WORK
AREA.

3. PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE SITE AND
SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE OF ANY UTILITIES, STRUCTURES
OR ANY OTHER ELEMENTS WHICH MAY IMPEDE WORK. UTILITY AND/OR
STRUCTURE RELOCATIONS, IF NECESSARY, SHALL BE COORDINATED THROUGH
THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE AT NO ADDITIONAL COST.

4. IT IS THE CONTRACTORS' RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY, COORDINATE AND STAGE
OR SEQUENCE HIS WORK WITH ANY OTHER PLANNED OR ONGOING
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AT THE SITE.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ANY STAGE WORK, LAY DOWN, AND
STORAGE AREA LOCATIONS AND ACCESS WITH OWNER, PRIOR TO START OF
WORK.

HATCHING LEGEND

EXISTING SLOPES 25-35%

EXISTING SLOPES >35%

SLOPE RANGE DISTURBANCE

70 sf

0 sf

EXISTING SLOPES <15% 9,429 sf

TOTAL 9,918 sf

EXISTING SLOPES 15-25% 419 sf

AREA

1,811 sf

2,912 sf

14,609 sf

23,339 sf

4,007 sf

http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg
http://epcadd/Details/UploadedFiles/Symbols/1616/3182/10SCALE.dwg


1 

 

      

               TOWN of GREENBURGH 

            CONSERVATION ADVISORY COUNCIL  

     177 Hillside Avenue, Greenburgh, New York 10607 
Theresa Mae Tori, Chair                                                                                                                                                                                                         

                                                             Donna Maiello, Vice Chair 

Margaret Beal 

 Nancy Drain 

   George Gundlach 

Lauren Powell 

        Liz Silverstein  

 

TO:        Planning Board  
 
FROM:  Greenburgh Conservation Advisory Council 
 
DATE:   Feb. 26, 2024 
 
RE:        PB 23-24 – 260 South Healy Ave., Scarsdale, NY 
 
 
PB 23-24 – 260 South Healy Ave., Scarsdale, NY was discussed at the CAC meeting held on Feb. 22, 2024.   
 
CAC members present were: T. Tori, L. Silverstein, D. Maiello, N. Drain, L. Powell, and G. Gundlach.  Planner M. Britton 
was present.  The project engineer, Vageles Sophias was present.   
 
Based on: 

• consideration of the documents presented to the CAC in connection with the application and the meeting 
discussions. 

 
The CAC RECOMMENDS that the Wetland/Watercourse Permit for: PB 23-24 – 260 South Healy Ave., Scarsdale, NY be 
granted, provided THE FOLLOWING CONDITION is satisfied: 
 

1. The recommendations contained in the Staff Report dated Feb. 14, 2024 are adopted. 

2. Test pits be dug in the location of the proposed underground stormwater detention system to determine the depth 
to bedrock and the results shared with the Town Engineer to determine if the stormwater detention system 
location/layout needs to be adjusted. 

3. The front yard slope down to the water course be kept in a vegetated state with any invasive plant material 
removed and replaced with native shrubs that provide erosion control/slope stabilization. 

 
The CAC notes that the applicant's neighbors were not given individual notice of the CAC meeting at which the application 
was considered and thus the CAC makes this recommendation without necessarily having heard concerns about this 
application from neighbors of the applicant who may choose to submit comments to the Planning Board rather than the 
CAC.  CAC recommendations address environmental issues under Chapter 280 (Wetlands and Watercourses Law) of 
Town Code, and Chapter 520-3 (CAC Powers and duties) without consideration as to whether there are feasible 
alternatives, whether the project's impacts are "necessary and unavoidable", and whether the project is classified as a 
"minor project".  This recommendation assumes that no environmentally significant modifications are proposed by the 
applicant that have not been reviewed by the CAC.  Recommendation is subject to documentation satisfactory to the 
Town Legal Dept. and the Planning Board. 
 
 
Theresa Mae Tori 
CAC Chairperson   
 

 



 

TOWN of GREENBURGH 
Department of Community  

Development & Conservation 

Paul Feiner 

Supervisor 

 Garrett Duquesne, AICP 

Commissioner 

Aaron Schmidt 

Deputy Commissioner 

 

1 

 

PB 23-24 

Staff Report to Planning Board – February 29, 2024 

Project Name: Lee & Cheng Zone: R-20 One-Family Residence District 

Case Number: PB 23-24 
       Site         

      Location: 

260 South Healy Avenue, P.O. 

Scarsdale, NY 

Applying for: 
Wetland/Watercourse Permit, and 

Tree Removal Permit. 
Site Size: 0.54 acres (23,339 sq. ft.) 

Owner: Vivian Lee and Warren Cheng Parcel ID: 8.290-224-42 

Design 

Professional: 
Matthew Sorrell, P.E. Variances: None 

Filing Date: December 22, 2023 

Date Application 

Sent to Planning 

Board: 

March 6, 2024 

Proposed Project: 

The project consists of a Wetland/Watercourse Permit and Tree Removal Permit application 

involving the proposed construction of a new single-family home. The Applicant proposes to 

remove an existing, burnt-out single-family home and construct a new home with related 

improvements. The Applicant proposes to disturb approximately 3,619 sq. ft. of 

wetland/watercourse buffer area on the property, associated with an on-site watercourse. The 

Applicant proposes the removal of one (1) regulated tree, requiring a Tree Removal Permit, and 

has prepared a landscaping plan providing for the planting of four (4) trees, as replacement.  

 

The property consists of approximately 23,339 sq. ft. (0.54 acres) and is situated on the easterly 

side of South Healy Avenue, approximately 500 feet south of the intersection of South Healy 

Avenue and Elizabeth Street. The property is located in the R-20 One-Family Residence District 

and is designated on the tax map of the Town of Greenburgh as Parcel ID: 8.290-224-42. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Property Description 
The property consists of approximately 23,339 sq. ft. (0.54 acres) and is situated on the easterly side of South Healy 

Avenue, approximately 500 feet south of the intersection of South Healy Avenue and Elizabeth Street. The property is 

located in the R-20 One-Family Residence District and is designated on the tax map of the Town of Greenburgh as Parcel 

ID: 8.290-224-42. To the north, south, and west of the subject property are residentially developed lots. To the east of the 

subject property is undeveloped woodland, followed by residentially developed lots. 

 

 

 

 



PB 23-24 Lee & Cheng 

260 South Healy Avenue, P.O. Scarsdale, N.Y.  

Wetland/Watercourse Permit and Tree Removal Permit 

Staff Report – February 29, 2024 
 

2 

 

Aerial Photo 

 
Aerial view of subject property (outlined in yellow). Approximate location of watercourse 

shown in blue. Location of proposed house shown in red. 
 

ZONING: 

Variance Determination 

The application has been reviewed by the Building Inspector who has determined that no area variances are needed 

for the project, as proposed. 

 

SEQRA 

Pursuant to Section 617.5(c)(11) of the SEQRA regulations, this proposal qualifies as a Type II action.  

 

POSSIBLE PROJECT IMPACTS AND PROPOSED MITIGATION: 
 

1) IMPACT ON LAND USE/ZONING 

Will the Proposed action create a material conflict with an adopted land use plan or zoning regulations?  

 

The Applicant’s proposal consists of the construction of a new single-family home. The Applicant proposes to remove 



PB 23-24 Lee & Cheng 

260 South Healy Avenue, P.O. Scarsdale, N.Y.  

Wetland/Watercourse Permit and Tree Removal Permit 

Staff Report – February 29, 2024 
 

3 

 

an existing, burnt-out single-family home and construct a new home with related improvements. The Applicant proposes 

to disturb approximately 3,619 sq. ft. of wetland/watercourse buffer area on the property, associated with an on-site 

watercourse. The Applicant proposes the removal of one (1) regulated tree, requiring a Tree Removal Permit, and has 

prepared a landscaping plan providing for the planting of four (4) trees, as replacement.  

 

The proposed action would not create a material conflict with an adopted land use plan or zoning regulations.  

 

2) IMPACT ON LAND 

Will the proposed action result in a change in the use or intensity of use of land? 

 

The Applicant’s proposal consists of the construction of a new single-family home. The Applicant proposes to remove 

an existing, burnt-out single-family home and construct a new home with related improvements. The Applicant proposes 

to disturb approximately 3,619 sq. ft. of wetland/watercourse buffer area on the property, associated with an on-site 

watercourse. The Applicant proposes the removal of one (1) regulated tree, requiring a Tree Removal Permit, and has 

prepared a landscaping plan providing for the planting of four (4) trees, as replacement. 
 

The “Proposed Action” will result in a physical change to the project site, however, the use and intensity of use of 

land will remain the same. 
 

 

3) IMPACT ON COMMUNITY CHARACTER 

Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of the existing community? 

 

The proposed area of work is situated on a residential property in a well-established residential area. The Applicant’s 

proposal is not anticipated to impair the character or quality of the surrounding community. 
 

4) IMPACT ON CRITICAL ENIRONMENTAL AREA (CEA) 

Will the proposed action have an impact on the environmental characteristics that caused the establishment of a 

Critical Environmental Area (CEA)? 

 

The proposed action will not impact any Critical Environmental Areas (CEA). 
 

5) IMPACT ON TRANSPORTATION 

Will the proposed action result in an adverse change in the existing level of traffic or affect existing infrastructure 

for mass transit, biking or walkway? 

 

The property fronts on South Healy Avenue and the project proposes to utilize an existing curb cut for the driveway. 

No changes to the level of traffic are anticipated. 

 

The proposed action is not anticipated to result in an adverse change in the existing level of traffic or impact existing 

infrastructure for mass transit, biking or walking. 
 

6) IMPACT ON ENERGY 

Will the proposed action cause an increase in the use of energy and it fails to incorporate reasonably available energy 

conservation or renewable energy opportunities? 

 

The proposed action will not result in an adverse impact to energy or sources of energy. 

 

7) IMPACT ON WATER/WASTEWATER 

Will the proposed action impact existing:  



PB 23-24 Lee & Cheng 

260 South Healy Avenue, P.O. Scarsdale, N.Y.  

Wetland/Watercourse Permit and Tree Removal Permit 

Staff Report – February 29, 2024 
 

4 

 

 

a. public / private water supplies?  

 

b. public / private wastewater treatment utilities? 

 

The proposed action will not negatively impact any public or private water supplies or wastewater treatment utilities.  

 

8) IMPACT ON HISTORIC, ARCHAEOLOGICAL, ARCHITECTURAL OR AESTHETIC RESOURCES 

Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of important historic, archaeological, architectural or 

aesthetic resources? 

 

The proposed action will not impact historic, archaeological, architectural or aesthetic resources. 

 

9) IMPACT ON NATURAL RESOURCES 

Will the proposed action result in an adverse change to natural resources (e.g., wetlands, waterbodies, groundwater, 

air quality, flora and fauna)? 

 

The Applicant’s proposal consists of the construction of a new single-family home. The Applicant proposes to remove 

an existing, burnt-out single-family home and construct a new home with related improvements. The Applicant 

proposes to disturb approximately 3,619 sq. ft. of wetland/watercourse buffer area on the property, associated with 

an on-site watercourse. The Applicant proposes the removal of one (1) regulated tree, requiring a Tree Removal 

Permit, and has prepared a landscaping plan providing for the planting of four (4) trees, as replacement. 

 

The proposed action is not anticipated to result in an adverse change to natural resources. 

 

10) IMPACT ON FLOODING & DRAINAGE 

Will the proposed action result in an increase in the potential for erosion, flooding or drainage problems? 

 

The Applicant’s proposal consists of the construction of a new single-family home. The Applicant proposes to remove 

an existing, burnt-out single-family home and construct a new home with related improvements. The Applicant proposes 

to disturb approximately 3,619 sq. ft. of wetland/watercourse buffer area on the property, associated with an on-site 

watercourse. The Applicant proposes the removal of one (1) regulated tree, requiring a Tree Removal Permit, and has 

prepared a landscaping plan providing for the planting of four (4) trees, as replacement. 
 
The Applicant will be required to install the following protection measures: soil stockpiling; silt fencing; a stabilized 

construction entrance; and tree protection measures (if deemed necessary). The sediment and erosion control measures 

will be installed prior to any major soil disturbances, and maintained until permanent protection is established, as directed 

by the Bureau of Engineering. All measures will be maintained in good working order at all times. All sediment and 

erosion control measures must be inspected on a regular basis, and after each heavy rainfall to ensure proper operation as 

designed. All work will meet the applicable provisions of the “New York State Guidelines for Urban Erosion and Sediment 

Control.” All areas outside the limits of disturbance will remain undisturbed. The Applicant will comply with all 

requirements of Town Code Chapter 248 – Stormwater Management. 

 

The proposed action is not anticipated to result in an increase in the potential for erosion, flooding, or drainage problems. 

 

11) IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES & HUMAN HEALTH 

Will the proposed action create a hazard to environmental resources or human health? 

 

The proposed action will not create a hazard to environmental resources or human health. 

 



PB 23-24 Lee & Cheng 

260 South Healy Avenue, P.O. Scarsdale, N.Y.  

Wetland/Watercourse Permit and Tree Removal Permit 

Staff Report – February 29, 2024 
 

5 

 

 

 
A. Photo of watercourse (right third of picture) from South Healy Avenue. 

  

Site Photos 

 



PB 23-24 Lee & Cheng 

260 South Healy Avenue, P.O. Scarsdale, N.Y.  

Wetland/Watercourse Permit and Tree Removal Permit 

Staff Report – February 29, 2024 
 

6 

 

 
B. Photo of existing residence from South Healy Ave, near the watercourse. 

 



   
Planning Board Meeting   6. 1.           
Meeting Date: 03/06/2024  

Information
Text/Header:
Case No. TB 23-09 Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Local Law – Zoning Text Amendment
(Town Board Referral)
A continued work session (January 3, 2024, January 17, 2024, February 7, 2024, and February
21, 2024) to consider a Zoning Text Amendment (Town Board referral) to regulate and permit
Accessory Dwelling Units, pursuant to Section 285-36 of the Town Zoning Ordinance, with
related definitions. The Town Board of the Town of Greenburgh finds it desirable to explore
allowing accessory dwelling units in one-family residential districts to provide an opportunity for
development of rental housing units designed to meet housing needs that include, but are not
limited to, single persons, couples, other small households, relatives of existing families within the
Town, the young, the elderly, and persons seeking more affordable options. The proposed Zoning
Text Amendment would allow for accessory dwellings units in the R-5, R-7.5, R-10, R-15, R-20,
R-30, and R-40 Zoning Districts, by Special Use Permit from the Planning Board.
 
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
TB 23-09 PB Draft Recommendation
TB 23-09 - PB Draft Report



TOWN of GREENBURGH
Department of Community

Development & Conservation

Paul Feiner
Supervisor

Garrett Duquesne, AICP
Commissioner

Aaron Schmidt
Deputy Commissioner

(1)

MEMORANDUM
TO: HON. SUPERVISOR AND MEMBERS OF THE TOWN BOARD

THRU: AARON SCHMIDT, DEPUTY COMMISSIONER, Department of CD & C

FROM: TOWN OF GREENBURGH PLANNING BOARD

DATE: March 7, 2024

RE:
Case No. TB 23-09 Chapter 285 – Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Local Law – Zoning Text 
Amendment (Planning Board Conditional Positive Recommendation)

On December 18, 2023, the Town of Greenburgh Town Board passed a resolution, pursuant to the requirements of 
Section 285-64 of the Zoning Ordinance, and referred a Zoning Text Amendment [Local Law] to the Planning Board
for its review and recommendation. The Zoning Text Amendment would regulate Accessory Dwelling Units in One-
Family Residential Districts to provide the opportunity and encouragement for development of rental housing units to 
meet housing needs that include, but are not limited to, single persons, couples, other small households, relatives of 
existing families within the Town, the young, the elderly, and persons seeking more affordable housing options. This 
provision will allow for the more efficient use of the Town’s existing stock of dwellings and accessory buildings; create 
diversity in the housing stock with minimal increase in building density; provide additional housing opportunities; 
provide economic support to existing residents; better facilitate aging in place; and protect and preserve property 
values.

On January 3, 2024, the Planning Board, at its regularly scheduled work session, heard a presentation from
Commissioner Garrett Duquesne and began its discussion of the proposed Zoning Text Amendment [Local Law]. 
Present at the meeting were Chairperson Hugh Schwartz, Ms. Leslie Davis, Mr. Michael Golden, Mr. Walter Simon, 
Mr. Johan Snaggs, and Ms. Aisha Sparks (Alternate Member).

On January 17, 2024, the Planning Board held a public discussion on the Zoning Text Amendment [Local Law] referral. 
Present at the meeting were Chairperson Hugh Schwartz, Vice Chairperson Thomas Hay, Ms. Leslie Davis, Mr. 
Michael Golden, Mr. Walter Simon, Mr. Johan Snaggs, and Ms. Aisha Sparks (Alternate Member). Following public  
comment, the Planning Board voted to close the public discussion and to keep the written record open through January 
29, 2024.

On January 17, 2024, the Planning Board, at its regularly scheduled work session and following the public discussion, 
continued its review and discussion of the proposed Zoning Text Amendment [Local Law]. Prior to its discussion, on 
a motion made by Mr. Snaggs and seconded by Mr. Hay, the Planning Board unanimously voted to issue no objection 
to the Town Board’s intent to serve as the Lead Agency for purposes of SEQRA review.

On February 7, 2024, the Planning Board, at its regularly scheduled work session, continued its review and discussion 
of the proposed Zoning Text Amendment [Local Law]. Present at the meeting were Chairperson Hugh Schwartz, Vice 
Chairperson Thomas Hay (via Zoom videoconference), Ms. Leslie Davis, Mr. Michael Golden, Mr. Walter Simon, and 
Ms. Aisha Sparks (Alternate Member). Following its discussion, on a motion made by Mr. Golden and seconded by 
Mr. Simon, the Planning Board unanimously voted to extend its review of the Zoning Text Amendment [Local Law] 
by 30 days, through March 17, 2024, as permitted under Section 285-64B(3)(a) of the Town Code. The Planning Board 
also directed staff to prepare a report and positive recommendation to the Town Board, for its consideration on February 
21, 2024.

On February 21, 2024, the Planning Board, at its regularly scheduled work session, continued its review and discussion 



Case No. TB 23-09 Chapter 285 – Accessory Dwelling Unit Local Law
Zoning Text Amendment (Town Board Referral)

Planning Board Recommendation
March 7, 2024

(2)

of the proposed Zoning Text Amendment [Local Law]. Present at the meeting were Chairperson Hugh Schwartz, Mr. 
Walter Simon, Mr. Kirit Desai, and Ms. Aisha Sparks (Alternate Member).

On March 6, 2024, the Planning Board, at its regularly scheduled work session, discussed the issuance of a report and 
recommendation to the Town Board pertaining to the regulation of Accessory Dwelling Units within the Town. Present 
at the meeting were Chairperson Hugh Schwartz, Vice Chairperson Thomas Hay, Ms. Leslie Davis, Mr. Kirit Desai, 
Mr. Michael Golden, Mr. Walter Simon, Mr. Johan Snaggs, and Ms. Aisha Sparks (Alternate Member).

1. On March 6, 2024, on a motion made by Mr. Hay and seconded by Mr. Desai, the Planning Board unanimously
voted to issue a report related to the Zoning Text Amendment [Local Law], dated March 7, 2024, and prepared 
in accordance with the requirements of Section 285-64 of the Zoning Ordinance.

2. On March 6, 2024, on a motion made by Mr. Snaggs and seconded by Ms. Davis, the Planning Board 
unanimously voted to support the Zoning Text Amendment [Local Law] and to issue a positive recommendation 
to the Town Board with respect to the regulation of Accessory Dwelling Units within the Town of Greenburgh, 
consistent with the findings and additional recommendations that follow.

The Planning Board is supportive of the Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) legislation and the efforts to address 
housing/affordable housing goals that the implementation of the law will help to facilitate, provided that the following 
three (3) recommendations are incorporated into a revised Local Law. If the approved Local Law does not include the 
three (3) recommendations listed below, the Planning Board’s recommendation shall be construed as a negative
recommendation.

∑ The Planning Board strongly opposes the minimum lot size restriction of 10,000 sq. ft. and therefore 
recommends that lots containing a minimum of 5,000 sq. ft. in area be permitted to have an ADU, subject to 
the issuance of a Special Use Permit. The Planning Board finds that this restriction within the Local Law, as 
currently written, would negatively impact low-to-moderate income families who may be house poor and for 
whom an ADU could provide a much-needed secondary stream of income.

∑ The Planning Board also opposes the 20,000 sq. ft. minimum lot size restriction for an ADU in a detached 
structure in addition to a detached garage. The Planning Board finds that the existing zoning regulations for 
floor area ratio, impervious surface coverages, and lot setbacks render this restriction unnecessary.

∑ The Planning Board recommends a modification to Section 285-36Q(7) Off-street parking, as follows: “An 
ADU may not generate extra street parking; all parking for the occupants of an ADU must be provided on the 
Applicant's property. Additionally, an ADU must have at least one (1) extra parking space, beyond the two (2) 
already required for a single-family residence under the Town’s Zoning Ordinance. The Planning Board may 
determine that an additional parking space may be necessary, depending on the number of bedrooms in the 
ADU, for a potential total of two (2) additional spaces.”

Additionally, the Planning Board suggests the Town Board consider the following recommendations:

∑ The Planning Board is supportive of the requirement that no new front doors shall be added to accommodate 
an ADU. However, the Planning Board recommends that, in instances where two (2) front doors already exist 
and an ADU is proposed, one of the front doors may be used for entry to the ADU.

∑ The Planning Board recommends a modification to Section 285-36Q(14) related to Permit Cap, as follows: 
“There shall be a twenty-five (25) per calendar year limitation on ADU Special Use Permit applications.”

∑ The Planning Board recommends a modification to Section 285-36Q(15) related to ADU density, as follows: 
“Distance separation. No ADU shall be located within 100/200/500 feet of another ADU, as measured from 
their property lines.

∑ The Planning Board recommends that the following subsection be added to Section 285-36Q, as follows:
“Community Character. Where any or all of the following exist: (1) lack of available off-street parking; (2) 
sub-standard street width; (3) lack of appropriate visual screening; or (4) other inadequate site characteristics,



Case No. TB 23-09 Chapter 285 – Accessory Dwelling Unit Local Law
Zoning Text Amendment (Town Board Referral)

Planning Board Recommendation
March 7, 2024

(3)

the Planning Board shall have discretion to deny an application where it is determined that an ADU or ADUs 
could detrimentally impact the area.

∑ The Planning Board recommends that the following subsection be added to Section 285-36Q, as follows: ADU 
Ownership. An ADU may be rented separate from the primary residence, or the primary residence rented 
separate from the ADU, but the ADU shall not be sold or otherwise conveyed separate from the primary 
residence, nor shall the primary residence be sold or otherwise conveyed separate from the ADU.

o Alternative language to above: ADU Ownership. The primary residence, the ADU, and the lot on 
which they are situated must be held in common ownership at all times.

∑ The Planning Board recommends that a sunset provision of 6 months/1 year/2 years be included, during which 
existing illegal ADUs can apply directly to the Building Department to legalize the ADU, without the need to 
go to the Planning Board for a Special Permit. 

The Planning Board finds that, with the recommended revisions detailed above, the Zoning Text Amendment [Local 
Law] would be a positive inclusion in the Town’s Zoning Ordinance, and one that would provide the opportunity and 
encouragement for development of rental housing units to meet housing needs that include, but are not limited to, 
single persons, couples, other small households, relatives of existing families within the Town, the young, the elderly, 
and persons seeking more affordable housing options. The Planning Board further finds that this provision will allow  
for the more efficient use of the Town’s existing stock of dwellings and accessory buildings; create diversity in the 
housing stock with minimal increase in building density; provide additional housing opportunities; provide economic 
support to existing residents; better facilitate aging in place; and protect and preserve property values. The Planning 
Board finds that this Zoning Text Amendment [Local Law] would be consistent with many aims and policies of the 
Town’s Comprehensive Plan, which encourages aging-in-place and the creation of additional affordable housing.

cc: Lisa Maria Nero, Town Clerk; 
J. Danko, Esq., Town Attorney;
A. Magana, Esq., First Deputy Town Attorney
Planning Board



TB 23-09 Zoning Text Amendments (Accessory Dwelling Unit Local Law) 
Planning Board Report

March 7, 2024

1

B. Report of the Planning Board. In making its report on any proposed amendment, the Planning 
Board shall make inquiry and determination concerning the items specified below:

(1) Concerning the proposed amendments to or change in the text of this chapter.

(a) Whether such change is consistent with the aims and principles embodied in the 
chapter as to the particular districts concerned;

The proposed Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Zoning Text Amendments would 
amend Section 285-5, Section 285-10, Section 285-36, Section 285-38, and Section 
285-39 to the Zoning Ordinance of the Code of the Town of Greenburgh, as 
follows: 

∑ Amend Section 285-5 to add a definition for ADUs and Living Space;
∑ Amend Section 285-10 to permit ADUs on lots with a single-family home;
∑ Amend Section 285-36 to add subsection Q, regulating various aspects of 

ADUs;
∑ Amend Section 285-38 to add parking regulations for ADUs; and
∑ Amend 285-39 to add requirements of compliance for ADUs.

Accessory Dwelling Units are dwelling units that are on a lot containing a single-
family home. ADUs are smaller than the single-family home and typically 
contained within or attached to the single-family home, although an ADU may be 
in a separate structure (such as a converted garage or purpose-built structure) on 
the same lot. ADUs can provide an opportunity for development of rental housing 
units designed to meet housing needs that include, but are not limited to, single 
persons, couples, other small households, relatives of existing families within the 
Town, the young, the elderly, and persons seeking more affordable options.

ADUs are proposed to be permitted via Special Use Permit in all One-Family 
Residence Districts within the Town. The Special Use Permit criteria are tailored 
to permit ADU development with minimal impact to the neighborhood, including 
considerations for aesthetic impacts, density concerns, and neighborhood 
character issues. The Planning Board, through these criteria, is empowered to 
restrict or modify ADU applications where there may be significant detrimental 
impacts. The protections granted by the criteria were designed in accordance with 
the aims and principals of the One-Family Residence Districts within the Town.

Establishing Special Use Permit criteria for ADUs may also help with legalizing 
existing, illegal ADUs. The Special Use Permit process would involve ensuring that 
the illegal ADU is compliant with current regulations for fire protection, sanitation 
and plumbing, electrical work, and other standards, which would make the ADU 
safer for its occupants. 



TB 23-09 Zoning Text Amendments (Accessory Dwelling Unit Local Law) 
Planning Board Report

March 7, 2024

2

These protections are anticipated to preserve the character of the One-Family 
Residence Districts within the Town, though the Planning Board has found that
some criteria may be overburdensome. The criterion requiring a minimum lot size 
of 10,000 sq. ft. effectively locks out a significant portion of Town from taking 
advantage of ADUs and is not needed because the draft local law already contains 
provisions for density consideration, off-street parking requirements, and 
conformity with existing zoning regulations. Similarly, the criterion prohibiting a 
second front door when it is pre-existing, can be considered overburdensome. A 
pre-existing second front door being converted to an entrance for an ADU would 
offer minimal impacts to the neighborhood character and aesthetics.

The Zoning Ordinance, as identified in 285-2 Purpose, establishes criteria A 
through K. The following are most applicable:

B. The assurance of adequate and necessary sites for residence, industry, 
commerce, recreation, open space and public and quasi-public uses;

E. The maximum protection of residential areas from the intrusion of incompatible 
land uses;

H. The gradual elimination of nonconforming uses;

J. The maximum practical preservation of natural and other significant 
environmental features, including water bodies, wetlands, steep slopes, hilltops, 
major stands of trees and other areas of geological, ecological or scenic value;

K. The encouragement of flexibility in the design and development of land in such 
a way as to promote the most appropriate use of lands, to facilitate the adequate 
and economic provision of streets and utilities, to preserve the natural and scenic 
qualities of open lands and to enhance and protect the environmental quality of 
the Town.

The proposed zoning text amendments are consistent with the above. 

(b) Which areas, land uses, buildings and establishments in the Town will be directly 
affected by such changes and in what way they will be affected;

The proposed zoning text amendments would establish regulations and guidelines 
for the permitting of ADUs in all of the One-Family Residence Districts within the 
Town, and therefore, much of the Town has the potential to be affected by the 
proposed amendments. The Planning Board is recommending an annual cap on 



TB 23-09 Zoning Text Amendments (Accessory Dwelling Unit Local Law) 
Planning Board Report

March 7, 2024

3

the number of applications for an ADU, which will minimize the impact of 
permitting ADUs. 

Lots with one-family residences are the only lots on which an ADU may be 
permitted. These lots make up approximately 28.5% of the area of the Town. ADUs 
would affect the lots improved with a one-family residence by adding a second 
dwelling unit and adding one (1) to four (4) new residents, depending on the size 
of the ADU. Depending on the specific configuration of the lot and existing 
structures, an ADU may result in no outward change in appearance other than a 
separate entrance on the side or rear, or may result in a new, dedicated ADU 
structure being constructed with an expanded driveway, or variations of 
development that fall in between. The use of the land would remain residential, 
but the density of people would increase. The criteria implemented in the local 
law afford the Town the ability to ensure that adverse impacts are minimized.

(c) The indirect implications of such change in its effect on other regulations; and

The local law will increase the workload of the Planning Board. A potential 
increase in Zoning Board of Appeals applications for applicants who want an ADU 
but are unable to meet some of the lot and bulk requirements.

(d) Whether such proposed amendments are consistent with the aims of the official 
planning policies of the Town of Greenburgh.

The Town of Greenburgh Comprehensive Plan constitutes the official planning 
policy of the Town of Greenburgh. The proposed amendments represent 
consistency with the following Comprehensive Plan goals, objectives, and policies: 

Goal 10.1, Protect and Enhance the Character of One-Family Neighborhoods; 
Objective 10.1.1, Prevent one-family neighborhoods from becoming overly dense, 
Goal 10.2, Promote a Range of Housing Opportunities and Choices for Households 
of all Income Levels, Ages, and Physical Abilities; Objective 10.2.3, Provide greater 
flexibility in residential site design; Policy 11.9.1.4, Review the zoning ordinance 
to ensure that permitted, special permit and accessory uses contain enforceable 
provisions to provide for the protection and promotion of the public health, 
safety, convenience, comfort and general welfare; Objective 12.2.1, updating 
Zoning Districts and/or zoning criteria consistent with the Plan; and, Policy 
12.2.1.6, Review permitted, special permit and accessory uses to ensure that 
viable uses consistent with the environmental and economic development goals 
of the Plan are not precluded.



TB 23-09 Zoning Text Amendments (Accessory Dwelling Unit Local Law) 
Planning Board Report

March 7, 2024

4

The Planning Board finds that the proposed amendments are consistent with the 
above Comprehensive Plan goals, objectives, and policies. The Planning Board 
recognizes, however, that the proposed amendments may not be fully consistent 
with Policy 10.1.1.1: Consistent with the future land-use map, preserve the 
density of existing underlying one-family residence districts. Adding an ADU may 
de minimusly increase the population density of a one-family residence district, 
however the building density is unlikely to significantly increase as ADUs could be 
within the footprint of existing structures. If an additional structure were to be 
constructed, it would have to conform with the underlying zoning requirements . 
The Planning Board finds that the criteria and discretion provided in the local law 
would adequately preserve the character of one-family residence neighborhoods , 
while providing for more housing opportunities. The Planning Board additionally 
finds that the annual cap on ADU applications and separation distance
recommended by the Planning Board would mitigate any population density 
impacts. The Planning Board finds that the benefits of permitting ADUs are 
supported in the various housing-related Goals, Objectives, and Policies of the 
Comprehensive Plan and outweigh any inconsistencies with Policy 10.1.1.1. The 
adoption of an ADU law represents a positive evolution of the Comprehensive 
Plan, addressing current housing conditions and the need for more housing 
options for Town residents.


	Agenda
	Minutes of February 21, 2024
	Att1_Minutes of 2_21_24
	PB 22-07 Chick-fil-A
	Att1_PB 22-07 Chick-fil-A Draft Recommendation to the ZBA
	Att2_PB 22-07 Chick-fil-A Draft Neg Dec
	PB 23-24 Lee & Cheng, 260 South Healy Ave
	Att1_PB 23-24 Application
	00- Cover Letter 12-20-23
	03- Disclosure Form Signed
	PB 23-24 Lee and Cheng 260 S Healy Ave Application Materials 11-21-23
	03- Disclosure Form Signed
	PB 23-24 Lee and Cheng 260 S Healy Ave Application Materials 11-21-23
	260 S Healy Ave Submission 11-21-2023
	01- Cover Letter
	02- Ownership Affidavit
	03- Short EAF
	05- Wetland Clearance Form
	10- ZONING COMPLIANCE FORM
	11- Slopes Clearance Permit
	#5025-R-260 S Healy Avenue - Cheng

	12- Tree Removal Permit Application
	01- Tree Removal Application
	03- Tree Removal Supplemental Information
	04- COI forTown of Greenburgh 2023
	05- C105 Town of Greenburgh_2023
	06- DB120_Twon of Greenburgh



	01- Environmental Clearance Form Signed
	Wetland Watercourse Permit Application Form

	01- Environmental Clearance Form Signed
	Wetland Watercourse Permit Application Form

	Att2_PB 23-24 Plans
	260 S Healy Ave Submission 11-21-2023
	09- Civil Set
	260 S Healy Ave Site Plan Rev 2b
	C101.00 Site Removals & ESC Plan-C101
	C201.00 Site Plan-C201
	C301.00 Site Grading and Drainage Plan-C301
	C401.00 Site Utility Plan-C401
	C501.00 Details-C501
	C501.00 Details-C502
	C202.00 Steep Slope Analysis-C202

	C201.00
	C201




	Att3_PB 23-24 CAC Recommendation
	Att4_PB 23-24 Staff Report
	TB 23-09 ADU Local Law
	Att1_TB 23-09 PB Draft Recommendation
	Att2_TB 23-09 - PB Draft Report

